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NOKIAN TYRES 2008-2017

CONSOLIDATED KEY Figures in EUR million unless otherwise indicated 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
FINANCIAL INDICATORS Net sales 1,572.5 1,391.2 1,360.1 1,389.1 1,521.0 1,612.4 1,456.8 1,058.1 798.5 1,080.9
growth, % 13.0% 2.3% -2.1% -8.7% -5.7% 10.7% 37.7% 32.5% -26.1% 5.5%
Operating margin (EBITDA) 463.7 395.2 378.6 398.5 479.0 496.9 451.7 291.5 164.0 303.1
Depreciation and amortisation 98.3 84.7 82.6 89.8 93.5 81.9 71.6 69.4 61.9 56.2
Operating profit (EBIT) 365.4 310.5 296.0 308.7 385.5 415.0 380.1 222.2 102.0 247.0
% of net sales 23.2% 22.3% 21.8% 22.2% 25.3% 257 % 26.1% 21.0% 12.8% 22.8%
Profit before tax 3324 298.7 274.2 261.2 312.8 387.7 359.2 208.8 73.5 173.8
% of net sales 21.1% 21.5% 20.2% 18.8% 20.6% 24.0% 24.7% 19.7% 9.2% 16.1%
Return on equity, % 15.1% 18.7% 19.6 % 16.0% 13.0% 25.2% 29.1% 20.0% 7.6% 18.8%
Return on capital employed, % 22.4% 19.9% 20.3% 19.2% 21.8% 24.3% 27.4% 19.9% 9.4% 22.9%
Total assets 1,877.4 19757 1,754.8 1,797.0 2,0629 20196 18759 1,371.6 12219 1,420.4
Interest-bearing net debt -208.3 -287.4 -209.7 -164.6 -56.4 -65.2 -3.6 0.7 263.7 319.0
Equity ratio, % 78.2% 73.8% 70.8% 67.5% 67.6 % 71.2% 63.2% 68.4% 62.0% 54.8%
Gearing, % -14.2%  -197% -169% -13.6% -41% -4.5% -0.3% 0.1% 34.8% 41.0%
Net cash from operating activities 2341 364.4 283.4 323.4 317.6 388.7 2329 327.2 194.2 18.4
Capital expenditure 134.9 105.6 101.7 80.6 125.6 209.2 161.7 50.5 86.5 181.2
% of net sales 8.6% 7.6% 7.5% 5.8% 8.3% 13.0% 11.1% 4.8% 10.8% 16.8%
R&D expenditure 21.8 20.3 18.7 16.6 16.1 16.9 15.1 12.7 12.0 12.5
% of net sales 1.4% 1.5% 1.4% 1.2% 1.1% 1.0% 1.0% 1.2% 1.5% 1.2%
Dividends (proposal) 214.2 208.0 202.0 193.5 193.3 191.9 156.6 83.8 50.7 49.9
Personnel, average during the year 4,630 4,433 4,421 4,272 4,194 4,083 3,866 3,338 3,503 3,812
Figures in EUR million unless otherwise indicated 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
PER SHARE DATA i
Earnings per share, EUR 1.63 1.87 1.80 1.56 1.39 2.52 2.39 1.34 0.47 1.12
growth, % -13.0% 3.6% 15.1% 129%  -45.0% 5.4% 787% 186.9%  -58.4% -18.3%
Earnings per share (diluted), EUR 1.61 1.86 1.80 1.56 1.39 2.46 2.32 1.32 0.49 1.10
growth, % -13.2% 3.2% 15.0% 129% -43.5% 5.8% 75.8% 168.2% -55.4% -15.6 %
Cash flow per share, EUR 1.72 2.70 212 2.43 2.39 2.96 1.80 2.58 1.56 0.15
growth, % -36.3% 27.4%  -12.7% 14%  -19.2% 64.2% -301% 66.0% 953.2% -89.3%
Dividend per share, EUR (proposal) 1.56 1.53 1.50 1.45 1.45 1.45 1.20 0.65 0.40 0.40
Dividend pay out ratio, % (proposal) 96.7 % 82.6% 83.9% 929% 105.2% 58.0% 50.7 % 49.4% 87.0% 35.7%
Equity per share, EUR 10.74 10.75 9.24 9.07 10.45 10.89 9.15 7.34 6.07 6.20
P/E ratio 23.3 19.0 18.4 13.0 25.2 11.9 10.4 20.5 36.4 7.0
Dividend yield, % (proposal) 41 % 4.3% 4.5% 71 % 4.2% 4.8% 4.8% 2.4% 2.4% 5.1%
Market capitalisation 31 December 5188.7 4,805.7 4,448.3 2,702.0 4,6477 39719 3,2247 3,5054 21225 987.5
Adjusted number of shares during the year, average, million units 136.25 134.86 133.63 133.16 132.65 131.24 129.12 126.75 124.85 124.61
diluted, million units 137.28 135.56 133.74 135.10 137.62 137.39 135.70 132.96 129.76 131.47
Number of shares 31 December, million units 136.75 135.68 134.39 133.17 133.29 131.96 129.61 127.70 124.85 124.85
Number of shares entitled to a dividend, million units 137.28 13593  134.69 133.47 133.34  132.32 130.50 128.85 126.69 124.85
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NOKIAN TYRES 2008-2017

CONSOLIDATED KEY Definitions

FINANCIAL INDICATORS o
Return on equity, % = Profit for the period x 100

Total equity (average)

Return on capital employed, % = Profit before tax + interest and other financial expenses x 100

Total assets - non-interest-bearing debt (average)

Equity ratio, % = Total equity x 100

Total assets - advances received

Gearing, % = Interest-bearing net debt x 100
Total equity

Earnings per share, EUR = Profit for the period attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Average adjusted number of shares’ during the year

Earnings per share (diluted?), EUR = Profit for the period attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Average adjusted and diluted? number’ of shares during the year

Cash flow per share, EUR = Cash flow from operations
Average adjusted number of shares’ during the year

Dividend per share, EUR = Dividend for the year

Number of shares entitled to a dividend

Dividend pay-out ratio, % = Dividend for the year x 100
Net profit

Equity per share, EUR = Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Adjusted number of shares’ on the balance sheet date

P/E ratio = Share price, 31 December

Earnings per share

Dividend yield, % = Dividend per share

Share price, 31 December

Twithout treasury shares
? the share options affect the dilution as the average share market price for the financial year exceeds the defined subscription price
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REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2017

Net sales increased by 13.0% to EUR 1,572.5 million (1,391.2 in 2016).
Currency exchange rate changes affected net sales positively by EUR
21.7 million compared with the rates in 2016.

Operating profit increased by 17.7% to EUR 365.4 million (310.5).
Operating profit percentage was 23.2% (22.3%).

The profit for the period decreased by 12.1% to EUR 221.4 million
(251.8). In Q3/2017, profit included additional taxes and punitive
interest of EUR 59 million related to tax year 2011.

Earnings per share were EUR 1.63 (1.87).

Cash flow from operating activities was EUR 234.1 million (364.4) and
was affected by the payment of EUR 59 million in additional taxes with
punitive tax increases and interest concerning the tax dispute related to
tax year 2011. The company paid the amount in November 2017. Cash
flow from operating activities was also affected by the payment of EUR
18.5 million in additional taxes with punitive tax increases and interest
concerning the tax dispute of Nokian Tyres U.S. Finance Oy and the years
2007-2013. The company paid the amount in August 2017.

The Board of Directors proposes a dividend of EUR 1.56 (1.53) per
share.

Hille Korhonen, President and CEO:

“Our year 2017 was successful in all aspects. Positive news and
new initiatives stimulated our year, and we demonstrated strong
performance in all of our main markets. These achievements are the
result of determined work, and significant successes in several areas
indicate our commitment to our strategy and goals.

The Passenger Car Tyres business unit performed well in 2017. Net
sales increased in all markets. Market growth was exceeded in Russia
due to our competitive product portfolio, price positioning and supply
capability. Sales and marketing investments and new products generated
sales growth in Other Europe and North America. We responded to
the growing demand by increasing in a timely manner the production
volumes at both factories and by commissioning a new production line
at the Russian factory. Operating profit increased year-over-year. In
Q4/2017, raw material costs decreased slightly compared with Q3/2017.
We estimate that raw material costs will remain approximately at the
same level for the full year 2018 compared with 2017.

In November 2017 we renewed an important local labor agreement
foryear 2018 at our Nokia factory regarding flexible working hours for the

passenger car tyre personnel. The goal of the agreement s to prepare for the
company’s growth, build flexibility for future seasons, and ensure employment
for the duration of the agreement. The agreement further strengthens the
role of the Nokia factory as a competitive center for expertise and production.

Heavy Tyres increased its sales, operating profit, production volume, and
productivity in 2017. All market areas showed growth. Sales of agricultural tyres
and forestry tyres increased, in particular. In December 2017, we announced
that we are increasing Heavy Tyres' production capacity by 50% by investing a
total of approximately EUR 70 million in its factory in Nokia over the following
three years. At the same time, we signed an agreement that encourages our
heavy tyres personnel to increase production flexibility by means of multi-
skilling. The aim of the investment is to further support our own growth as
well as our customers’ growth.

Vianor's (own equity) net sales increased slightly due to the challenging
retail market situation in the Nordic countries. However, the profitability
improvement program progressed according to plan. Our branded distribution
network, including Vianor, NAD, and N-Tyre stores, grew by 346 storesin 2017.

In December 2017, we announced that we are accelerating profitable
growth, customer orientation and innovative future solutions by renewing
our leadership and operational model. The purpose of this change is also
to create a market-focused and scalable structure and to increase efficiency
through global functions and processes.

Nokian Tyres is in great shape, and we are ready for the construction work
of our Dayton factory. High customer satisfaction, a new global structure,
our safe and eco-friendly products, and competent personnel create an
excellent ground for future growth. We are definitely on the right track and
well positioned to further improve our sales and operations.”

Market situation
The positive development in global economy is expected to continue in 2018. As
we entered 2018, all regions were showing positive development. The global GDP
is estimated to grow by 3.8% in 2018 (3.7% in 2017). The GDP growth estimates
for the Nordic countries range from +1.9% to +3.0%, whereas for Europe
(including the Nordic countries) the number is +2.1% and for the US it is +2.6%.
In Russia, GDP is forecasted to grow by approximately 1.5% to 2.0% in 2018.
Raw material prices demonstrated fast growth at the beginning of the
year, but the growth levelled off towards the year-end. The global tyre
industry responded to the growing raw material prices by announcing price
increases. This resulted in a very challenging pricing environment in 2017.
In Europe, sales of new cars increased in 2017 by 3% year-over-year.
Car tyre sell-in to distributors increased 3% year-over-year, with winter tyre
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demand increasing by 3%. Overall, tyre demand is estimated to increase
slightly year-over-year in 2018.

In the Nordic countries, new car sales increased in 2017 by 2% year-
over-year. The market volume of car tyres decreased by 6%. For the full
year 2018, car tyre demand is estimated to increase slightly year-over-year.

In North America, the estimated new car sales were down in 2017 by
1% year-over-year. The market volume of car tyres increased by 1% year-
over-year. However, demand for winter tyres increased by 3%. For the full
year 2018, car tyre demand is estimated to increase slightly year-over-year.

In the full year 2017, the Russian economy started growing again after
a prolonged recession. Real GDP is estimated to have grown by 1.4-1.8%
in 2017. However, private consumption remains quite weak after a 15%
decline in 2015-2016. Along with consumers' real income, it gradually
started recovering in 2017, but the improvement is unlikely to be rapid.
This developmentis reflected in the retail turnover in Russia, which shows
quite moderate signs of growth. In 2017, sales of new cars increased by
12% compared with 2016, with growth starting only in March, picking up
since June and finishing the year with a 14% increase in December vs.
the same month in 2016. Sales of new cars in Russia are expected to
grow by approximately 12-15% in 2018 compared with 2017, driven by the
improved economy, deferred demand and low comparison base - from
the level of 1.6 million vehicles in 2017 up to 1.8 million in 2018. The total
replacement tyre market sell-in in Russia is expected to grow by 3-5% in
2018 compared with 2017, with the winter tyre market growing by 7-9%
and summer declining by 2-3%. Both summer and winter tyre sell-in for
the 2017 season showed growth, backed by low carry-over stocks from
2016. The consumer sell-out season in Russia remained flat in summer
tyres compared with 2016 and showed some growth in winter tyres.

The global demand for special heavy tyres continued to be healthyin
2017. The demand for OE forestry tyres remained strong. The increased
use of wood and the good profitability of pulp manufacturers will also
support the demand for forestry machines and tyres in the following
quarters. During the review period the agricultural segmentimproved.

In 2017, the sell-in of premium truck tyres was at the same level
in Europe, and was up in the Nordic countries by 1%. In Russia, the
demand for premium truck tyres decreased by 5% compared with 2016.
Truck tyre demand in 2018 is estimated to increase in all of Nokian
Tyres’ Western markets; in Russia, demand is estimated to remain at
the same level year-over-year.

In 2017, the global GDP is estimated to have grown by 3.7%. The GDP
growth estimates for Nordic countries were 1.9-3.2%, and for Europe

(including the Nordic countries) the estimate was 2.4%. The GDP in
USA grew by 2.3%. In Russia, the GDP is estimated to have grown by
1.4%-1.8% in 2017.

Raw materials

Nokian Tyres'raw material costs (EUR/kg) increased by 17.5% in 2017 year-
over-year. The raw material costs are estimated to remain approximately
at the same level in the full year 2018 compared with 2017.

REVIEW JANUARY-DECEMBER 2017

Nokian Tyres Group recorded net sales of EUR 1,572.5 million (2016:
1,391.2; 2015: 1,360.1), with an increase of 13.0% compared with 2016.
Currency exchange rates affected net sales positively by EUR 21.7 million.
In the Nordic countries, sales increased by 4.6% and represented 39.8%
(43.1%) of the Group's total sales. In Russia and CIS, consolidated sales
increased by 46.4% and formed 20.7% (16.0%) of the Group's total sales.
In Other Europe, sales increased by 8.0% and represented 27.9% (29.3%)
of the Group's total sales. In North America, sales increased by 15.2%
and were 10.9% (10.8%) of the Group's total sales.

Net sales of Passenger Car Tyres were up by 16.1%, representing
69.0% (66.7%) of the Group's net sales. Heavy Tyres' net sales were up
by 11.0% and were 10.4% (10.6%) of the Group's net sales. Vianor's net
salesincreased by 1.4%, forming 20.6% (22.8%) of the Group's net sales.

Raw material costs (EUR/kg) in manufacturing increased by 17.5%
year-over-year. Fixed costs amounted to EUR 473.3 million (431.0),
thereby accounting for 30.1% (31.0%) of net sales. Total salaries and
wages were EUR 215.2 million (2016: 197.6; 2015: 197.1).

Nokian Tyres Group's operating profit amounted to EUR 365.4 million
(2016: 310.5; 2015: 296.0), with an increase of 17.7% compared with 2016.
The operating profit was negatively affected by the IFRS 2 compliant accrual
for share option and performance share plans of EUR 16.1 million (15.0).
In 2017, the expensed credit losses and provisions were EUR 0.2 million
(18.6). Operating profit percentage was 23.2% (2016: 22.3%; 2015: 21.8%).

Net financial expenses were EUR 33.0 million (11.8). Net interest
expenses were EUR 24.3 million (8.0) including EUR 15.2 million in
penalty interest related to tax year 2011 and EUR 3.1 million in penalty
interest related to Nokian Tyres U.S. Finance Oy. Net financial expenses
include a loss of EUR 8.7 million (a loss of EUR 3.8 million) due to
exchange rate differences.
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Profit before tax was EUR 332.4 million (298.7). The profit for the period
amounted to EUR 221.4 million (251.8), and EPS were EUR 1.63 (1.87). In
Q3/2017, profit was penalized by the additional taxes of EUR 59 million
in Finland, including punitive tax increases and interest based on the
reassessment decisions from the Tax Administration related to the tax
dispute for 2011 received in October 2017 and EUR 3.1 million in penalty
interest related to Nokian Tyres U.S. Finance Oy and the years 2007-2013.
The profit for the period decreased by 12.1% compared with 2016.

Return on equity was 15.1% (2016: 18.7%; 2015: 19.6%). Cash flow
from operating activities was EUR 234.1 million (364.4), and was
affected by the payment of EUR 59 million in additional taxes with
punitive tax increases and interest concerning the tax dispute related
to tax year 2011. The company paid the amount in November 2017.
Cash flow from operating activities was also affected by the payment
of EUR 18.5 million in additional taxes with punitive tax increases and
interest concerning the tax dispute of Nokian Tyres U.S. Finance Oy and
the years 2007-2013. The company paid the amount in August 2017. In
2016, cash flow from operating activities was affected by the payment
of EUR 46.1 million in additional taxes with punitive tax increases and
interest concerning the tax years 2007-2010.

In 2017 the Group employed, on average, 4,630 (2016: 4,433;
2015: 4,421) people and 4,635 (2016: 4,392; 2015: 4,389) people at the
end of the review period. At the end of the review period, the Group
employed 1,724 (2016: 1,616; 2015: 1,732) people in Finland, and 1,503
(2016: 1,368; 2015: 1,327) people in Russia. The equity-owned Vianor
tyre retail chain employed 1,660 (2016: 1,742; 2015: 1,681) people at the
end of the review period.

Research & Development

The goal of Nokian Tyres is for new products to account for at least
25% of annual net sales. The development of a brand-new passenger
car tyre takes 2 to 4 years. Approximately one half of R&D investments
are allocated to product testing. Group’s R&D costs in 2017 totalled
approximately EUR 21.8 million (2016: 20.3; 2015: 18.7), which is 1.4%
(2016: 1.5%; 2015: 1.4%) of the Group's net sales.

Investments

Investments in the review period amounted to EUR 134.9 million (105.6).
This comprises production investments in the Russian and Finnish
factories, molds for new products, investments in the Dayton factory,
and ICT and process development projects.

Financial position on December 31, 2017
The gearing ratio was -14.2% (-19.7%). Interest-bearing net debt
amounted to EUR-208.3 million (-287.4). Equity ratio was 78.2% (73.8%).

The Group'sinterest-bearing liabilities totaled EUR 135.2 million (225.8),
of which the currentinterest-bearing liabilities amounted to EUR 0.8 million
(88.8). The average interest rate for interest-bearing liabilities was 2.7%
(3.1%). Cash and cash equivalents amounted to EUR 343.4 million (513.2).

At the end of the review period, the company had unused credit
limits amounting to EUR 508.9 million (508.7), of which EUR 155.6 million
(155.7) were committed. The current credit limits and the commercial
paper program are used to finance inventories, trade receivables,
and subsidiaries in distribution chains, thereby controlling the typical
seasonality in the Group's cash flow.

The Group's total comprehensive income was negatively affected
by translation differences for foreign operations by EUR 33.5 million
(positively 121.8). The total comprehensive income for the period
amounted to EUR 189.2 million (373.4).

TAX RATE

Dispute concerning 2007-2011

In December 2013 and in January 2014, Nokian Tyres received
reassessment decisions from the Tax Administration, according to
which the company was obliged to pay a total of EUR 100.3 million in
additional taxes with punitive tax increases and interest concerning
the tax years 2007-2010. The company recorded the amount in full
to the financial statement and result of the year 2013. The company
considered the decisions unfounded and appealed against them by
filing a claim for rectification with the Board of Adjustment.

In April 2015, the Board of Adjustment of the Finnish Tax
Administration annulled the reassessment decision by the Tax
Administration, according to which the company was obliged to pay EUR
100.3 million in additional taxes with punitive tax increases and interest
concerning the tax years 2007-2010, and returned the matter to the Tax
Administration for reprocessing. According to the Board of Adjustment,
the Tax Administration neglected the obligation to hear the taxpayer.
Because of the procedural fault by the Tax Administration, the Board
of Adjustment annulled the decisions without considering the actual
substance of the matter.

The company returned the total additional taxes of EUR 100.3
million from 2007-2010 in full to the financial statement and result for
the first quarter of 2015.
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In December 2015 and January 2016, the company received renewed
reassessmentdecisions from the Tax Administration, according to which
the company was obliged to pay EUR 94.1 million in additional taxes, of
which EUR 62.8 million were additional taxes and EUR 31.3 million were
punitive tax increases and interest. Previously, the Tax Administration
had already set off EUR 43.1 million of the amount despite the stay of
execution. The company paid the remaining amount in January 2016.
The company still considers the decisions unfounded and appealed
against them by filing a claim with the Board of Adjustment.

Based on the renewed reassessment decisions, the company
recorded the total additional taxes of EUR 94.1 million in full as expenses
in the financial statement and result for 2015.

In November 2016, the company announced that the Board
of Adjustment of the Finnish Tax Administration held in force the
reassessment decision from the Tax Administration related to
additional taxes of EUR 62.8 million but reduced the amount of
punitive tax increases and interest from EUR 31.3 million to EUR 26.4
million concerning the tax years 2007-2010. The company has paid
the amount of EUR 89.2 million in full. The company considers the
decision unfounded and appealed against it by filing a claim with the
Administrative Court in January 2017.

In October 2017, the company received reassessment decisions
from the Tax Administration concerning tax year 2011, according to
which the company is obliged to pay a total EUR 59 million, of which
EUR 39 million are additional taxes and EUR 20 million are punitive
tax increases and interest. The company recorded the amount in full
to the financial statement and result of Q3/2017. Payment was paid in
November 2017. The company considers the reassessment decision of
the Tax Administration unfounded and appealed in November 2017 to
the Board of Adjustment. If necessary, the company will continue the
appeal process in the Administrative Court.

Year 2012 and onwards have not been tax audited by the Finnish
Tax Administration.

Dispute concerning the US subsidiary 2007-2013

Nokian Tyres U.S. Finance Oy, a subsidiary of Nokian Tyres plc
(ownership: 100% of the shares), received reassessment decisions
from the Finnish Tax Administration in 2013 and 2014. According to the
reassessment decisions, and with interest until the actual payment in
August 2017, the company was obliged to pay in total EUR 18.5 million in
additional taxes with punitive tax increases and interest concerning the

taxyears 2007-2013. Of this amount, EUR 11.0 million were additional
taxes and EUR 7.5 million were punitive tax increases and interest. The
company recorded them in full in the financial statements and results
for 2013, 2014, and 2017.

The Large Taxpayers' Office carried out a tax audit concerning the
Finnish Business Tax Act, where the Tax Administration raised an issue
regarding the restructuring of the sales company and acquisitions by the
Nokian Tyres Group in North America, completely ignoring the business
rationale and corresponding precedent rulings presented by the company.

Nokian Tyres U.S. Finance Oy considered the reassessment decision
of the Tax Administration unfounded and filed a claim for rectification
with the Board of Adjustment.

InJune 2017, the Board of Adjustment rejected the company’s claim
for rectification. The company considers the decision unfounded and
appealed against it by filing a claim with the Administrative Court in July
2017. The company has paid the amount of EUR 18.5 million in full in
August 2017.

Year 2014 and onwards are not subject to tax disputes due to
changes in company's structure.

Tax rate outcome and estimate

The Group's tax rate was 33.4% (15.7%) in the review period. Tax rate
without tax disputes was 19.2%. The tax rate is positively affected by
tax incentives in Russia for current investments and further future
investments. The latest agreed tax benefits and incentives for the factory
came into force at the beginning of 2013 and, for the sales company,
these were renewed in August 2016. The agreements will extend the
validity of the benefits and incentives until approximately 2020. Due to
the renewed agreementand changes in Russian legislation, the Group’s
estimated tax rate is expected to be 19% for 2018-2019.

The tax rate in the coming years will depend on the timetable and
final outcome of the ongoing back tax disputes with the Finnish Tax
Administration. The Group’s corporate annual tax rate may rise as a
result of these cases.

BUSINESS UNIT REVIEWS

PASSENGER CAR TYRES

Net sales of Nokian Passenger Car Tyres totaled EUR 1,138.8 million
(981.1) in 2017, up by 16.1% year-over-year. Operating profit was EUR
359.9 million (305.8). Operating profit percentage was 31.6% (31.2%).
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Net sales increased during the review period, due to a significant net
sales increase in Russia and good growth in Other Europe and North
America. Market growth was exceeded in Russia due to a competitive
product portfolio, price positioning and supply capability. Sales and
marketing investments and new products generated sales growth
in Other Europe and North America both in winter and All-Season
segments. In all markets areas, net sales increased year-over-year.
Operating profitincreased year-over-year. Sales in Other Europe grew
in Q4/17 driven by good winter season.

In 2017, the ASP in euros increased due to price increases, a positive
currency impact and animproved product mix. The share of winter tyres
in the sales mix was 69% (67%), the share of summer tyres was 21%
(24%), and the share of All-Season tyres was 10% (9%). Increased sales
of All-Season tyres strengthen our position in North America and Other
Europe. Price increases were implemented during 2017 in all markets.

Raw material costs (€/kg) were up by 17.7% year-over-year. Improved
productivity supported the margins.

Nokian Tyres excelledin tyre tests, with several wins in car magazine tests
allover the world. Read more at: www.nokiantyres.com/test-success/. A
flow of product launches with new innovations - improving safety, comfort,
and eco-friendly driving - continued in the review period. For example, the
Nokian Hakkapeliitta 9, Nokian Hakkapeliitta 9 SUV, Nokian Nordman 7,and
Nokian Nordman 7 SUV were introduced in January 2017. The key markets
for these products are the Nordic countries, Russia, and North America.
The Nokian Hakkapeliitta 44 was launched in February 2017; itis used in the
harshest environments of the world, such as on glaciers, the Antarctica, and
in the northern part of Eurasia. In September 2017, Nokian Tyres launched
new members for the Nokian Hakka summer tyre family - the Nokian
Hakka Black 2, Nokian Hakka Black 2 SUV, and Nokian Hakka Blue 2 SUV.
The key markets for these products are the Nordic countries and Russia.
We also launched the Nokian eNTYRE C/S, an All-Season tyre designed for
CUVs and SUVs and developed for the North American market. The new
products have been received well by the markets. In December 2017, Nokian
Tyres announced that the company strengthens its cooperation with car
manufacturersin Central Europe. The BMW Group has approved the Nokian
WR D4 winter tyre to be sold in its dealerships.

During the review period, capacity utilization increased year-over-
year, and the production output (pcs) increased by 15%. In Q3/2017, a
new production line at the Vsevolozhsk factory was gradually taken into
use. The company also increased production at the Nokia factory with
the current shift pattern. Productivity (kg/mh) improved by 3% year-

over-year. In 2017, 85% (86%) of Nokian passenger car tyres (pcs) were
manufactured at the Russian factory.

HEAVY TYRES

Net sales of Nokian Heavy Tyres totaled EUR 172.3 million (155.3) in
2017, up by 11.0% year-over-year. Operating profit was EUR 32.2 million
(28.2). Operating profit percentage was 18.7% (18.2%).

Inthe review period, demand was good in most of Nokian Heavy Tyres'
core product groups in the Western markets. All market areas showed
growth. Sales increased clearly in North America and increased in Other
Europe and the Nordic countries. In Russia, sales increased partly due to
currency effects. Sales of agricultural tyres and forestry tyres increased in
particular. New product sales developed well and increased the full year
net sales. Operating profit increased year-over-year due to the increased
sales and production volumes and improved productivity.

In 2017, the ASP increased slightly year-over-year mainly due to price
increases and an improved product mix. Price increases related to higher
material costs were implemented in all markets during 2017. During the
review period, sales volumes of the company's own production increased
year-over-year. Productivity increased slightly year-over-year.

Production output (metric tons) increased compared with 2016.
Investments in production technology and capacity continued.

In December 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that Heavy Tyres
is increasing its production capacity by 50% by investing a total of
approximately EUR 70 million in its factory in Nokia, Finland, over the
following three years. The aim is to increase the maximum capacity for
heavy tyre production from approximately 20 million kg to 32 million kg.

VIANOR

Net sales totaled EUR 339.4 million (334.8) in 2017, up by 1.4% year-
over-year. Operating profit was EUR -5.8 million (-8.1). Operating profit
percentage was -1.7% (-2.4%).

IN 2017, net sales increased slightly year-over-year. Nordic countries' retail
business environment was very challenging in terms of tough competition
landscape. This has been leading to a complex pricing environment.
The profit improvement program, including the network optimization,
progressed according to plan. At the end of the review period, Vianor had
194 (212) equity service centers in Finland, Sweden, Norway, and the USA.

Branded distribution network
Nokian Tyres' branded distribution network includes the Vianor equity
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chain, Vianor partner chain, Nokian Tyres Authorized Dealers (NAD),
and N-Tyre. Vianor chains operate in 26 countries.

In Nokian Tyres' key markets, the size of the Vianor equity and partner
chain decreased during 2017 (compared with year-end 2016: equity -18,
partner -17). At the end of the review period, the Vianor equity and partner
network comprised 1,466 service centers in total, of which 1,272 were
partners.

The Nokian Tyres Authorized Dealers (NAD) network expanded
during the review period by 374 stores compared with year-end
2016, and now comprises 1,855 stores operating under contract in 21
European countries and China. N-Tyre, a Nokian Tyres partner network,
is operating with 127 stores in Russia and the CIS and expanded during
the review period by 7 stores compared with year-end 2016.

OTHER MATTERS

1. Stock options on the Nasdaq Helsinki Stock Exchange

The total number of stock options 2013A was 1,150,000. Each stock
option 2013A entitled its holder to subscribe to one share in Nokian
Tyres plc. The shares were subscribed with the stock options 2013A
during the period of May 1, 2015 to May 31, 2017.

The total number of stock options 2013B is 1,150,000. Each stock
option 2013B entitles its holder to subscribe to one share in Nokian Tyres
plc. The shares can be subscribed with the stock options 2013B during
the period of May 1, 2016 to May 31, 2018. The present share subscription
price with stock options 2013Bis EUR 25.06/share. The dividends payable
annually are deducted from the share subscription price.

The total number of stock options 2013C is 1,150,000. Each stock
option 2013C entitles its holder to subscribe to one share in Nokian Tyres
plc. The shares can be subscribed with the stock options 2013C during
the period of May 1, 2017 to May 31, 2019. The present share subscription
price with stock options 2013Cis EUR 21.39/share. The dividends payable
annually are deducted from the share subscription price.

2. Shares subscribed with option rights

After November 10, 2016 registered new shares a total of 14,146 Nokian
Tyres plc's shares were subscribed with the 2013A option rights and
a total of 80 shares with the 2013B option rights. These option rights
are attached to the Nokian Tyres plc's Option Program of 2013. The
new shares were registered into the Trade Register on February 9,

2017, as of which date the new shares established shareholder rights.
The share capital will not increase with subscriptions made by 2013
option rights. The entire subscription price of EUR 396,234.76 was
entered in the invested unrestricted equity reserve. As a result of the
share subscriptions, the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares increased
to 135,925,921 shares. The shares have been traded on the Nasdaq
Helsinki Ltd together with the old shares as of February 10, 2017.

After February 9, 2017 registered new shares a total of 371,314
Nokian Tyres plc's shares were subscribed with the 2013A option rights
and a total of 18,399 shares with the 2013B option rights. These option
rights are attached to the Nokian Tyres plc's Option Program of 2013.
The new shares were registered into the Trade Register on May 11,
2017, as of which date the new shares established shareholder rights.
The share capital will not increase with subscriptions made by 2013
option rights. The entire subscription price of EUR 10,238,862.86 was
entered in the invested unrestricted equity reserve. As a result of the
share subscriptions, the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will increase
to 136,315,634 shares. The shares have been traded on the Nasdaq
Helsinki Ltd together with the old shares as of May 12, 2017.

After May 11, 2017 registered new shares a total of 693,053 Nokian
Tyres plc's shares were subscribed with the 2013A option rights, a
total of 7,062 shares with the 2013B option rights and a total of 52,026
shares with the 2013C option rights. These option rights are attached
to the Nokian Tyres plc’s Option Program of 2013. The new shares were
registered into the Trade Register on August 16, 2017, as of which date
the new shares established shareholder rights. The share capital will
notincrease with subscriptions made by 2013 option rights. The entire
subscription price of EUR 19,537,895.35 was entered in the invested
unrestricted equity reserve. As a result of the share subscriptions, the
number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will increase to 137,067,775 shares.
The shares have been traded on the Nasdaq Helsinki Ltd together with
the old shares as of August 17, 2017.

After August 16, 2017 registered new shares a total of 84,222 Nokian
Tyres plc’'s shares were subscribed with the 2013B option rights and a
total of 49,377 shares with the 2013C option rights. These option rights
are attached to the Nokian Tyres plc's Option Program of 2013. The
new shares were registered into the Trade Register on November 9,
2017, as of which date the new shares will establish shareholder rights.
The share capital will not increase with subscriptions made by 2013
option rights. The entire subscription price of EUR 3,166,777.35 was
entered in the invested unrestricted equity reserve. As a result of the
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VIANOR
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In 2016, non-recurring items amounted to EUR 3.6 million included the
write-off of ICT development projects.

* Excluding non-recurring items: Operating profit EUR -4.5 million,
operating profit percentage -1.3%.
In 2017, non-recurring items amounted to EUR 1.8 million in total.

* Excluding non-recurring items: Operating profit EUR -4.0 million,
operating profit percentage -1.2%.
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share subscriptions, the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will increase
to 137,201,374 shares. The shares have been traded on the Nasdaq
Helsinki Ltd together with the old shares as of November 10, 2017.

After November 9, 2017 registered new shares a total of 60,358 Nokian
Tyres plc's shares were been subscribed with the 2013B option rights and
a total of 4,850 shares with the 2013C option rights. These option rights
are attached to the Nokian Tyres plc's Option Program of 2013. The new
shares were registered into the Trade Register on December 21, 2017,
as of which date the new shares will establish shareholder rights. The
share capital will not increase with subscriptions made by 2013 option
rights. The entire subscription price of EUR 1,616,312.98 was entered
in the invested unrestricted equity reserve. As a result of the share
subscriptions, the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will increase to
137,266,582 shares. The shares have been traded on the Nasdaq Helsinki
Ltd together with the old shares as of December 22, 2017.

3. Authorizations

In 2017, the Annual General Meeting authorized the Board of Directors
to make a decision to offer no more than 25,000,000 shares through
a share issue, or by granting special rights under Chapter 10, Section
1 of the Finnish Limited Liability Companies Act that entitle to
shares (including convertible bonds), on one or more occasions. The
authorization is effective for two years from the decision.

In 2017, the Annual General Meeting authorized the Board of
Directors to resolve to repurchase a maximum of 5,000,000 shares
in the company by using the funds in the unrestricted shareholders’
equity. The authorization is effective until the next Annual General
Meeting, however, at most until October 10, 2018.

4.0wn shares
No share repurchases were made in the review period, and the
company did not possess any own shares on December 31, 2017.

In 2014 and in 2017, Nokian Tyres entered into an agreement with
a third-party service provider concerning the share-based incentive
program for key personnel. The third party owns the shares until the
shares are given to the participants within the program. In accordance
with IFRS, these repurchased shares, 300,000 in 2014 and 480,000
in 2017, have been reported as treasury shares in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. On December 31, 2017, the number of
these shares was 521,331. This number of shares corresponded to 0.4%
of the total shares and voting rights of the company.

5. Trading in shares

Nokian Tyres'share price was EUR 37.80(35.42) at the end of the review
period. The volume weighted average share price during the period was
EUR 37.25 (31.75), the highest was EUR 41.95 (36.74) and the lowest
was EUR 34.24 (27.48). A total of 117,227,947 shares were traded in
Nasdaq Helsinki during the period (138,561,065), representing 85%
(102%) of the company'’s overall share capital. Nokian Tyres' shares are
also traded on alternative exchanges, such as BATS CXE, Turquoise,
and BATS BXE. The total trading volume on these alternative exchanges
was 83,293,139 (127,537,938) shares during the review period. The
company's market capitalization at the end of the period was EUR 5.189
billion (4.814 billion). The company had 39,028 (35,483) shareholders.
The percentage of Finnish shareholders was 25.5% (23.1%), and 74.5%
(76.9%) were non-Finnish holders and foreign shareholders registered
in the nominee register. This figure includes Bridgestone's holding of
approximately 14.6% (ownership at the AGM registration day on April
10, 2017).

6. Changes in ownership
Nokian Tyres has received announcements from BlackRock, Inc. on
November 16, 2017, and on December 18, 2017, according to which
the holdings of the mutual funds managed by BlackRock, or indirect
holding in Nokian Tyres shares, exceeded the level of 5% of the share
capital in Nokian Tyres plc, as a result of a share transactions concluded
on November 15, 2017, and on December 15, 2017.

Nokian Tyres has received announcements from BlackRock, Inc.
on November 15, 2017, on November 17, 2017, and on December 28,
2017, according to which the holdings of the mutual funds managed
by BlackRock, or indirect holding in Nokian Tyres shares, fell below the
level of 5% of the share capital in Nokian Tyres plc, as a result of share
transactions concluded on November 14, 2017, on November 16, 2017,
and on December 27, 2017.

Detailed information on flagging can be found at www.nokiantyres.
com/company/investors/share/flagging-notifications/.

7. Decisions made at the Annual General Meeting

On April 10,2017, the Annual General Meeting of Nokian Tyres approved
the Financial Statements for 2016 and discharged the members of the
Board of Directors and the President and CEO from liability for the
2016 financial year.
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7.1. Dividend

The meeting decided that a dividend of EUR 1.53 per share should
be paid for the period ending on December 31, 2016. The dividend
payment date was April 27, 2017, and the dividend was paid to the
shareholders included in the shareholder list maintained by Euroclear
Finland Ltd on the record date of April 12, 2017.

7.2. Change to the Articles of Association

The meeting confirmed the new proposed wording for Article 4: The
Company'’s administration and proper organization of operations shall
be the responsibility of the Board of Directors, consisting of a minimum
of four and a maximum of eight members, in accordance with the
decision made by the General Meeting of the Shareholders. The term
of office of the members of the Board of Directors ends at the closing
of the first Annual General Meeting following the election. The Board of
Directors shall elect a Chairman and a Deputy Chairman from amongits
members until the closing of the next Annual General Meeting.

7.3. Members of the Board of Directors and Auditors

The meeting decided that the Board of Directors has seven members.
Of the current members, Heikki Allonen, Tapio Kuula, Raimo Lind,
Veronica Lindholm, Inka Mero, and Petteri Walldén will continue in
the Board of Directors. Mr. George Rietbergen was elected as a new
member of the Board.

Authorized public accountants KPMG Oy Ab continue as auditors.

7.4. Remuneration of the Members of the Board of Directors

The meeting decided that the monthly fee paid to the Chairman of the
Board is EUR 6,667, or EUR 80,000 per year, the monthly fee paid to
the Deputy Chairman of the Board and to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee is EUR 5,000, or EUR 60,000 per year, and the monthly fee
paid to Members of the Board is EUR 3,333, or EUR 40,000 per year.

50% of the annual fee is paid in cash and 50% in company shares
to the effect that, during the period from April 11 to April 30, 2017, EUR
40,000 worth of Nokian Tyres plc shares were purchased at the stock
exchange on behalf of the Chairman of the Board, EUR 30,000 worth
of Nokian Tyres plc shares were purchased at the stock exchange on
behalf of the Deputy Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Audit
committee, and EUR 20,000 worth of shares were purchased on behalf
of each Board Member.

The company is liable to pay any asset transfer tax which may arise
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from the acquisition of shares. Each member of the Board will receive
a meeting fee of EUR 600 per attended meeting. If a Board member's
habitual residence is outside Finland, the meeting fee is EUR 1,200
per attended meeting. Travel expenses will be compensated for in
accordance with the company's travel policy.

8. Chairman of the Board, Deputy Chairman of the Board, and
Committees of the Board of Directors

In the Board meeting on April 10, 2017, Petteri Walldén was elected
Chairman of the Board and Tapio Kuula was elected Deputy Chairman of
the Board. The Board elected Tapio Kuula (Chairman), Veronica Lindholm,
and Petteri Walldén as members of the Personnel and Remuneration
Committee. The Board elected Raimo Lind (Chairman), Heikki Allonen,
Inka Mero, and George Rietbergen as members of the Audit Committee.

On November 14, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the following
changes have been made to Nokian Tyres plc’s Board of Directors due
to the passing of Deputy Chairman Tapio Kuula.

Nokian Tyres' Board of Directors continues with six members until
the next Annual General meeting that will be held on 10 April 2018. The
current members of the Board of Directors are Petteri Walldén (Chairman),
Heikki Allonen, Raimo Lind, Veronica Lindholm, Inka Mero and George
Rietbergen. For the remaining term of office, Nokian Tyres' Board of
Directors has elected, from among its members, Raimo Lind as its new
Deputy Chairman of the Board and Petteri Walldén (Chairman), Raimo Lind
and Veronica Lindholm as members of the Personnel and Remuneration
Committee. Raimo Lind (Chairman), Heikki Allonen, Inka Mero and George
Rietbergen continue as members of the Audit Committee.

9. Corporate social responsibility

Nokian Tyres published its Corporate Sustainability Report in March
2017. The Corporate Sustainability Report is available in Finnish
and English on the company’s website at www.nokiantyres.com/
company/sustainability/. The report is based on the international,
widely adopted GRI G4 guidelines that divide sustainability into three
main groups (financial, environmental, and social sustainability and
their different subgroups). Product safety and quality, as well as
profitable growth, good HR management, and environmental issues
are important for the development of sustainable business operations
at Nokian Tyres. The report is the fifth GRI report from Nokian Tyres
and, in the interests of quality assurance, it has now been externally
assured for the second time.

Nokian Tyres plcis included in the OMX GES Sustainability Finland Gl
index. The index is designed to provide investors with a liquid, objective,
and reliable benchmark for responsible investments. The benchmark
index comprises the 40 leading Nasdaq Helsinki listed companies in
terms of sustainability. The index criteria are based on international
guidelines for environmental, social, and governance (ESG) issues.
Theindex is calculated by Nasdag in cooperation with GES Investment
Services. Nokian Tyres is also included in the STOXX Global ESG Leaders
indices, and is a constituent of the FTSE4Good Index.

In September 2017, Nokian Tyres was selected for Dow Jones’ DJSI
World sustainability index. With a total sustainability score nearly twice as
high as the industry average in the Auto Components sector, Nokian Tyres
significantly improved its results in the 2017 assessment. Nokian Tyres'
score of 78 points was only one point behind the industry’s best company
globally. The Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI) is an annual sustainability
assessment of large publicly traded companies by the Swiss RobecoSAM.

10. Nokian Tyres introduces new flagship products for its
winter tyre range: the Nokian Hakkapeliitta 9 and Nokian
Hakkapeliitta 9 SUV utilize unique stud technology

OnJanuary 3,2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the company is renewing
its studded tyre range by launching its new flagship products: the Nokian
Hakkapeliitta 9, for passenger cars, and the Nokian Hakkapeliitta 9 SUV
for sports utility vehicles. In addition to the Nokian Hakkapeliitta winter
tyres, the company is also introducing the new studded Nokian Nordman
7 and Nokian Nordman 7 SUV winter tyres. The Nokian Nordman product
family offers an alternative to the premium products in terms of the
price-quality ratio and supplements Nokian Tyres’ product range for
different consumer groups. Key markets for both product families are
the Nordic countries, Russia, and North America.

11. Changes in Nokian Tyres’ management team

On January 18, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that Mr. Timo Tervolin,
Vice President, Strategy and Corporate Development, will take over
the responsibility for the global Process Development in Nokian Tyres
as of February 1, 2017. Mr. Alexej von Bagh, the current Vice President,
Process Development will move outside the company.

12. Nokian Tyres plc Performance Share Plan: performance
period 2017 and realization of performance period 2016
On February 2, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the potential reward
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from the performance period 2017 will be based on the Nokian Tyres
Group's net sales and operating profit. The rewards to be paid on the basis
of the performance period 2017 correspond to an approximate maximum
total of 540,000 shares in Nokian Tyres plc, also including the proportion to
be paid in cash. During the performance period 2017, the Plan is targeted
towards approximately 200 key employees, including the members of the
Group's Management Team. The potential reward from the performance
period 2017 will be paid partly in the company’s shares and partly in cash
in 2018. The shares paid as a reward may not be transferred during an
approximately one-year restriction period established for the shares. For
shares paid on the basis of the performance period 2017, the restriction
period will end on March 31, 2019.

The rewards to be paid in 2017, on the basis of the achievement of
the required performance levels set for the performance criteria of
the performance period 2016, correspond to a total of 402,875 Nokian
Tyres plc shares, also including the proportion to be paid in cash. The
Plan was targeted towards 182 key employees, including the members
of the Group’s Management Team. The shares paid as a reward may
not be transferred during an approximately one-year restriction
period established for the shares. For shares paid on the basis of the
performance period 2016, the restriction period will end on March 31,
2018. The members of the Group’s Management Team must hold 25%
of the received gross shares until the member’s shareholding in the
company equals the member's fixed gross annual salary.

13. Nokian Tyres plc: Managers’ transactions

Nokian Tyres announced managers' transactions on February 8, 2017;
February 10, 2017; March 7, 2017; March 10, 2017; March 24, 2017;
March 27, 2017; April 13, 2017; and November 1, 2017.

Read more at: www.nokiantyres.com/company/publications/
releases/2017/managementTransactions/.

14. Nokian Tyres plc: Shares subscribed with option rights
On February9,2017, Nokian Tyres announced that, after the registration
of new shares on November 10, 2016, a total of 14,146 Nokian Tyres
plc’s shares have been subscribed with the 2013A option rights and a
total of 80 shares with the 2013B option rights. As a result of the share
subscriptions, the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will increase to
135,925,921 shares.

On May 11,2017, Nokian Tyres announced that, after the registration of
newshares on February 9, 2017, atotal of 371,314 Nokian Tyres plc's shares
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have been subscribed with the 2013A option rights, and a total of 18,399
shares with the 2013B option rights. As a result of the share subscriptions,
the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will increase to 136,315,634 shares.

On August 16, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that, after the
registration of new shares on May 11, 2017, a total of 693,053 Nokian Tyres
plc's shares have been subscribed with the 2013A option rights, a total of
7,062 shares with the 2013B option rights, and a total of 52,026 shares
with the 2013C option rights. As a result of the share subscriptions, the
number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will increase to 137,067,775 shares.

On November 9, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that, after the
registration of new shares on August 16, 2017, a total of 84,222 Nokian
Tyres plc's shares have been subscribed with the 2013B option rights,
and a total of 49,377 shares with the 2013C option rights. As a result
of the share subscriptions, the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares will
increase to 137,201,374 shares.

On December 21, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that, after the
registration of new shares on November 9, 2017, a total of 60,358
Nokian Tyres plc's shares have been subscribed with the 2013B option
rights, and a total of 4,850 shares with the 2013C option rights. As a
result of the share subscriptions, the number of Nokian Tyres plc shares
will increase to 137,266,582 shares.

15. Hille Korhonen appointed President and CEO of Nokian
Tyres plc

On March 28, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the Board of Directors
of Nokian Tyres plc has appointed Licentiate of Science (Technology)
Hille Korhonen (born 1961) as the new President and Chief Executive
Officer of Nokian Tyres plc. She will start at Nokian Tyres on June 1,2017.
Hille Korhonen has more than 20 years of experience in international
consumer business and leading global industrial operations. Andrei
Pantioukhov has acted as Interim President and CEO since January 2017,
and will continue in this role until Korhonen assumes her duties as CEO.
As of June 1, 2017, Mr. Pantioukhov will continue as the Executive Vice
President of Nokian Tyres plc, General Manager, Russian operations,
and a member of the Group’s management team.

16. Nomination to Nokian Tyres’ management team

On April 19, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that Mr. Frans Westerlund
has been appointed Vice President, CIO and Processes. He will join
Nokian Tyres plc as a member of the management team on August 1,
2017. Mr. Westerlund will report to the President and CEO. Mr. Teppo

Huovila, the current Vice President for Quality, Sustainability and ICT, will
continue in the company’s management team as Vice President, Quality
and Sustainability. Process development is currently part of Mr. Timo
Tervolin's responsibilities. He will continue in the company’s management
team as Vice President, Strategy and Corporate Development.

Read more at: www.nokiantyres.com/company/news-article/
nomination-to-nokian-tyres-management-team-3/.

17. Nokian Tyres’ Board of Directors has made a principal
decision to invest in a greenfield factory in the USA

On May 3, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that Nokian Tyres’ Board of
Directors has made a principal decision on the investment in the third
factory and authorized the management of the company to sign a Letter
of Intent with the respective authorities in the USA. The new greenfield
factory will be located in Dayton (Rhea County), Tennessee, USA. The
annual capacity of the factory will be 4 million tyres with potential to
expand in the future. The site will also house a distribution facility with a
storage capacity of 600,000 tyres. The total amount of the investment at
this phase is approximately USD 360 million. Construction is scheduled
to begin in early 2018 and the first tyres are to be produced in 2020.

18. The building work of Nokian Tyres’ third factory starts in
North America

On September 20, 2017, Nokian Tyres held a groundbreaking ceremony
to celebrate the beginning of the building work of the company’s third
factory. The new factory will be the company’s first manufacturing facility
in North America. The new greenfield factory will be located in Dayton
(Rhea County), Tennessee, USA. During the ceremony, President & CEO
Hille Korhonen reaffirmed the company's ambition to doubling salesin the
next five years within North America. Nokian Tyres' goal is to lead the tyre
industry in sustainable manufacturing as well as to make sure the company
is the employer of choice within the greater communities it serves.

Read more at: www.nokiantyres.com/daytonfactory

19. Nokian Tyres received EUR 59 million additional payable tax in

Finland regarding year 2011; the company will appeal the decision

OnOctober 3,2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the company has received
a tax reassessment decision from the Tax Administration, according to
which the company is obliged to pay EUR 59 million in additional taxes with
punitive tax increases and interest concerning the tax year 2011. Payment
is due in November 2017. The total sum demanded by the tax authorities
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is EUR 59 million, of which EUR 39 million are additional taxes and EUR 20
million are punitive tax increases and interest. The company will record
the 2011 total additional taxes of EUR 59 million in full to the financial
statement and result of Q3/2017. The Tax Administration’s ruling does
not affect the company's dividend distribution. The company considers
the reassessment decision of the Tax Administration as unfounded and is
going to appeal to the Board of Adjustment and, if necessary, the company
will continue the appeal process in the Administrative Court. If needed, the
company will also require the competent authorities to negotiate on the
elimination of the double taxation.

20. Nokian Tyres' Hakkapeliitta 9 selected for Popular Science
Best of What's New Award

On October 19, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the world's largest
science and technology magazine Popular Science has selected Nokian
Tyres' Hakkapeliitta 9 for its 2017 Best of What's New Award. Recipients
of this award must have a product or technology representing a
significant step forward in its category.

21. Changes in Nokian Tyres’ Board of Directors and its
Committees

On November 14, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the following
changes have been made to Nokian Tyres plc's Board of Directors due
to the passing of Deputy Chairman Tapio Kuula.

Nokian Tyres' Board of Directors continues with six members until the
next Annual General meeting that will be held on 10 April 2018. The current
members of the Board of Directors are Petteri Walldén (Chairman), Heikki
Allonen, Raimo Lind, Veronica Lindholm, Inka Mero, and George Rietbergen.
For the remaining term of office, Nokian Tyres' Board of Directors has
elected, from among its members, Raimo Lind as its new Deputy Chairman
of the Board, and Petteri Walldén (Chairman), Raimo Lind, and Veronica
Lindholm as members of the Personnel and Remuneration Committee.
Raimo Lind (Chairman), Heikki Allonen, Inka Mero, and George Rietbergen
continue as members of the Audit Committee.

22. Nokian Tyres renews agreement on flexible working times
and hires permanent employees in Nokia

On November 17, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the company
has signed an importantlocal agreement on flexible working hours for
its personnel in 2018. At the same time, the company is moving more
than 30 passenger car tyres employees and 15 heavy tyres employees


http://www.nokiantyres.com/company/news-article/nomination-to-nokian-tyres-management-team-3/
http://www.nokiantyres.com/company/news-article/nomination-to-nokian-tyres-management-team-3/
https://www.nokiantyres.com/daytonfactory/
http://www.nokiantyres.com/daytonfactory
https://www.nokiantyres.com/winter-tyres/nokian-hakkapeliitta-9/
https://www.nokiantyres.com/winter-tyres/nokian-hakkapeliitta-9/
https://www.popsci.com/top-automotive-innovations-2017
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from fixed-term contracts to permanent employment. The goal of the
agreement is to prepare for the company's growth, build flexibility
for future seasons and ensure employment for the duration of the
agreement. The agreement further strengthens the role of the Nokia
factory as a competitive center for expertise and production. This year,
Nokian Tyres has invested dozens of millions of euros in the Nokia site
and hired a total of more than 170 new employees.

23. Nokian Tyres is renewing its leadership and operational
model to support global business

On December 4, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the company is
accelerating profitable growth, customer orientation and innovative
future solutions by renewing its leadership and operational model. The
purpose of this change is also to create a scalable structure and to increase
efficiency through global functions and processes. The new organization
structure will be valid starting from January 1, 2018. Nokian Tyres'business
unit structure will remain unchanged, consisting of Passenger Car Tyres,
Nokian Heavy Tyres and Vianor. Company's external reporting model will
continue to include business units and geographical areas.

Nokian Tyres’ management team from 1 January 2018 onwards:
Hille Korhonen, President and CEO

Andrei Pantioukhov, Executive Vice President, Russia and Asia business area
Pontus Stenberg, Europe business area

Tommi Heinonen, Americas business area

Pontus Stenberg, interim, Products and Technologies unit

Manu Salmi, Nokian Heavy Tyres business unit

Anna Hyvonen, Vianor business unit

Anne Leskeld, Finance & IR

Esa Eronen, Supply Chain & Sustainability

Antti-Jussi Tahtinen, Marketing & Communications

Tarja Kaipio, HR

Frans Westerlund, IT & Processes

Susanna Tusa, Legal & Compliance

Timo Tervolin, Strategy & M&A

Read more at: www.nokiantyres.com/company/investors/
corporate-governance/the-groups-management-team/

24. Nokian Tyres strengthens its cooperation with car
manufacturers in Central Europe
On December 5, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that the BMW Group

has approved the Nokian WR D4 winter tyre as original equipment
for the BMW X1. The Nokian WR D4 is a new-generation winter tyre
developed by Nokian Tyres for Central European weather conditions. It
provides excellent grip and comfortable handling even at high speeds.
The tyre meets the BMW Group's strict requirements and is both a safe
and stylish choice for drivers who value quality.

25. Nokian Heavy Tyres to increase its production capacity by
50%, investing EUR 70 million in Nokia

On December 22, 2017, Nokian Tyres announced that Nokian Heavy
Tyres Ltd, part of the Nokian Tyres group, is increasing its production
capacity by 50% by investing a total of approximately EUR 70 million
inits factory in Nokia over the following three years. With the capacity
increase, approximately 50 new people will be hired for the production
of heavy tyres. The aim is to increase the maximum capacity for heavy
tyre production from approximately 20 million kg to 32 million kg.
Nokian Heavy Tyres Ltd has also signed an agreement with the local
labor union on increasing competitiveness through flexibility. The
agreement motivates the personnel to develop multiple skills. This
agreement remains in force until the end of 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

A separate Corporate Governance Statement, including a Remuneration
Statement, has been issued and published in connection with the publishing
of the Report by the Board of Directors. The statements are available
on pages 72-79 of this report as well as on the company's website at
www.nokiantyres.com/company/investors/corporate-governance/.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has adopted a risk management policy, approved by the
Board of Directors, which supports the achievement of strategic goals
and ensures continuity of business. The Group’s risk management
policy focuses on managing both the risks pertaining to business
opportunities and the risks affecting the achievement of the Group's
goals in the changing operating environment.

Therisks are classified as strategic, operational, financial, and hazard
risks. Strategic risks are related to customer relationships, competitors’
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actions, political risks, country risks, brand, R&D, and investments.
Operational risks arise as a consequence of shortcomings or failures in
the Company's internal processes, actions by its personnel or systems,
or external events, such as legislative changes, unpredictable rulings
by judicial systems or authorities, or changes in raw material prices.
Financial risks (Note 29) are related to fluctuations in interest rate
and currency markets, refinancing, and counterparty and receivables
risks. Hazard risks may lead to injuries, property damage, production
outages, environmental impacts, or liabilities to third parties

The most significant risks related to Nokian Tyres' business are the
country risks related to the Russian business environment, reputation
risks, tax risks (especially in Finland), risks related to products
and product development, production outage risks, currency and
receivable risks, risks related to Corporate Governance, and information
security and data administration risks. Due to the company's product
strategy, interruption risks that are related to marketing and logistics
may especially have a significant impact on peak season sales. The
performed risk analysis paid special attention to risks within the area
of corporate social responsibility, the most significant of which were
the risks related to reputation and product quality. Analyses and
projects related to information security, data protection and customers’
background information were a special focus area.

The risk management process aims to identify and evaluate the
risks, and to plan and implement the practical measures for each risk.
Among other things, such measures may include avoiding the risk,
reducing it in different ways, or transferring the risk through insurance
or agreements. Control functions and actions are control or back-up
procedures applied to reduce risks and ensure the completion of risk
management measures.

Risk management is not allocated to a separate organization;
its tasks follow the general distribution of responsibilities adopted
elsewhere in the organization and its business activities. The company's
Board of Directors discusses the most significant risks annually in
connection with the strategic process.

Risks, uncertainty, and disputes in the near future

The positive development in global economy is expected to continue

in 2018, but political uncertainties could cause serious disruption and

additional trade barriers, and affect the company's sales and credit risk.

Brexit, as such, has practically no direct effect on Nokian Tyres’ business.
In 2017, the company’s receivables increased year-over-year


http://www.nokiantyres.com/company/investors/corporate-governance/the-groups-management-team/
http://www.nokiantyres.com/company/investors/corporate-governance/the-groups-management-team/
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following the sales increase. The tyre inventories are at the planned
level. The company follows the development of NWC very closely. At
the end of the review period, Russian trade receivables accounted for
35% (37%) of the Group's total trade receivables.

Approximately 35% of the Group’s sales in 2018 are estimated to
be generated from Euro-denominated sales. The most important sales
currencies in addition to the euro are the Russian ruble, the Swedish
and Norwegian krona, and the US and Canadian dollar.

Nokian Tyres' other risks and uncertainty factors relate to the
challenging pricing environment for tyres. As raw material prices rise,
maintaining profitability will depend on the company’s ability to raise
tyre prices in line with the increasing raw material costs.

The company announced in February 2016 that its practices
concerning tyre tests in the past have not always been in line with the
sustainable approach of Nokian Tyres. The company emphasizes that its
tyres have always been safe and that safety has never been compromised
on. There are no court cases in process related to the matter.

In May 2017, the Finnish Financial Supervisory Authority filed a request
for investigation with the National Bureau of Investigation regarding
possible securities market offences in relation to the magazine tyre testing
case. The company has been made aware that the National Bureau of
Investigation has initiated a preliminary investigation into the matter.

More detailed information relating to the risks can be found at
www.nokiantyres.com/annual-reports, Financial review 2017, on
pages 47-52 and 76-77.

Tax disputes
Nokian Tyres Group has pending disputes with the Finnish Tax
Administration. They are described earlier in this report under “Tax rate”.

NON-FINANCIAL REPORTING STATEMENT

Nokian Tyres is the world’s northernmost tyre manufacturer that
promotes and facilitates safe transport under all conditions, while
respecting environmental values. The company’s products, which are
designed and manufactured for different conditions, offer reliability,
performance, and peace of mind. For more than 80 years, Nokian
Hakkapeliitta has been the leading winter tyre brand in the Nordic
countries and Russia.

In addition to the Passenger Car Tyres unit, the group includes

Nokian Heavy Tyres, which focuses on special tyres for the heavy
industry, and the Vianor tyre chain, which conducts wholesale and retail
sales in Nokian Tyres' main markets. In 2017, the company’s net sales
were EUR 1.6 billion and it employed on average 4,630 people. Nokian
Tyres' share is listed on Nasdag Helsinki.

The company has factories in Nokia and Russia, and it is currently
constructing a new factory in the United States. Nokian Tyres' products
were sold in 59 countries. The key markets are the Nordic countries
and Russia, where the company is the market leader in premium tyres.
Central Europe and North America are other important markets for the
company in terms of profitable growth.

The risk management policy adopted by Nokian Tyres' Board
of Directors supports achieving the company’s strategic goals and
ensuring business continuity. You can read more about the company's
risk management under “Risk Management” in the Report by the Board
of Directors and in the Corporate Governance Statement.

Corporate Sustainability at Nokian Tyres

At the end of 2015, Nokian Tyres joined the United Nations Global
Compact (UNGC) initiative as a supporting member. The initiative's ten
principles cover the areas of Human Rights, Labor, Environment, and
Anti-Corruption measures. The purpose of the voluntary initiative is to
guide companies in integrating the principles as part of their business.
Joining the UN Global Compact initiative is a significant milestone in the
company’s international sustainability development work. Signing the
initiative further strengthened the group’s commitment to conducting
profitable business in a sustainable way.

The company's selection into Dow Jones' DJSI World index for
sustainability in September 2017 may be considered as one of the
results of this long-term development. The overall assessment received
by Nokian Tyres in the evaluation for 2017 was significantly higher than
in the previous year, and the company's points were nearly twice as
high as the average for its field of business. Nokian Tyres' score of 78
points was only one point away from the world's highest score in the
Automobiles & Components sector. The Dow Jones Sustainability Index
(DJSI) is an annual sustainability assessment for large publicly traded
companies, performed by the Swiss RobecoSAM.

Sustainability management

At Nokian Tyres, sustainability is managed in a systematic manner,
developing both operations and culture. The company takes into
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account the entire product lifecycle and all of the business functions,
and it aims to go beyond the minimums required by the law and
applicable standards. Sustainability management is emphasized in all
of the company’s functions and supply chains. Nokian Tyres wants to be
the most sustainable and ethical tyre company and an industry pioneer.

The company's sustainability functions are led by a member of the
group’s management team who is ultimately responsible for meeting
the goals of corporate sustainability. All supervisors’ duties include
day-to-day leadership of sustainability. Larger topics and guidelines
are discussed by the management team and, if necessary, by the Board
of Directors.

Board of Directors

Group’s management team

Vianor
management team

Nokian Heavy Tyres
management team

Policy decisions and follow-up

VP, Quality & Sustainability
Corporate Sustainability workgroup
Safety management workgroup
Energy Efficiency workgroup

Sustainable Purchasing workgroup

RISK MANAGEMENT
SNOILYDINANWWOD

Department-specific occupational
development workgroups

Environmental representatives
All units and supervisors
Personnel

Developing sustainability and day-to-day leadership of sustainability

Diagram: Leadership and direction of corporate sustainability within the Nokian
Tyres group


http://www.nokiantyres.com/annual-reports
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Five areas of corporate sustainability
Nokian Tyres has divided corporate sustainability into five clear
categories:

1. Hakkapeliitta Way - sustainable business
2. World on wheels - product liability

3. Economy

4. People

5. Planet

HAKKAPELIITTA WAY - SUSTAINABLE
BUSINESS

Indicator: All of our major natural rubber processors (at least
80% of our natural rubber purchasing volume) have been
audited by 2020.

The Hakkapeliitta Way category comprises five sustainability principles
in the Nokian Tyres group that are connected with the company’s
strategy and ways of working:

Transparent and comprehensive reporting: Nokian Tyres follows
the statutory requirements and the rules of the stock exchange on the
publicity of information that is relevant to our business. It also follows
the principle of transparency in line with the Global Reporting Initiative
guidelines. The company aims at meeting all of its stakeholders’
reasonable requirements.

Business ethics and compliance with the laws and regulations:
Business is guided by the Ethics Guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors. They specify the ethical principles for our business,
instructions for ethics questions, and a code of conduct. The company
follows the law and the group’s internal guidelines and respects the
spirit of the law in every country of operation. The company’s guidelines
and leadership descriptions for human rights and anti-corruption
activities are included in Nokian Tyres' Ethics Guidelines that states
the company does not approve of any type of corruption, such as giving
or receiving bribes, blackmail, or abuse of a public office.
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HAKKAPELIITTA WAY

The principles that guide our
operations throughout the group

7

VALUES, STRATEGY, AND GOALS

Sustainability is part of our company’s culture, strategy, and goals.
We manage our sustainability in five areas.

Transparent and comprehensive reporting

Conducting business ethically, in compliance with laws and regulations

Sustainable purchasing from raw materials to services

Good corporate citizenship

Active partnership with stakeholders

m) Our group’s business is guided by our Ethical Guidelines, whistleblowing

policy; Environment, Safety, and Quality policy; purchasing and
communication policy, GRI reporting, and the UN Global Compact initiative.

World on wheels
We develop and
manufacture eco-friendly,
safe, and high-quality tyres
that reach their destination
safely even under
demanding conditions.

We emphasize the eco-

friendliness of our products.

Economy
Through profitable growth,
we enable the further

development of our operations

and ensure financial security,
work, and well-being for our
stakeholders.

We want our customers to
be highly satisfied with our
products and services.

AREAS OF OPERATIONAL SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

People
We develop and maintain
a company culture that
promotes fair and equal
treatment, caring,
and respect.

We guarantee a safe

working environment for our

employees and partners.

Planet
We ensure that our
actions do not harm the
environment or people;
instead, our objective is
promoting well-being
in general.

We are a tyre industry
pioneer in matters of the
environmental aspects.

The essential standards, group policies and procedures in terms of developing our operations

Tyre/vehicle safety (e.g.
Uniform, stud regulation,

noise), Tyre labels, Chemical

regulation, Tyre testing.

Rules of the stock exchange,
IFRS codes, good accounting

practice, Corporate
Governance system, risk
management, objective
decision making, credits,
legal matters.

Safety and well-being, hiring,

induction, people reviews,
further development of
personnel competence,
travel, social media,
privacy protection.

Local guidelines and procedures
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ISO 14001, environmental

protection, control of

chemicals, the Responsible

Care programme.

In addition to the categories of sustainability at Nokian Tyres, the figure visualizes the essential principles, commitments, and guidelines.
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Responsible purchasing of raw materials, goods, and services:
Nokian Tyres follows the UN Global Compact principles as well as its
own ethical principles, which also address the issues of responsibility in
the purchasing chain. The company requires all of its material suppliers
to adhere to its Supplier Code of Conduct and to have an ISO 9001
certified quality management system in place. Its goal also is for all
suppliers to have valid ISO 14001 environmental certification. The raw
materials for tyres come from all over the world, and all suppliers are
committed to the company’s purchase terms that require compliance
with international human rights, labor rights, and anti-corruption
measures. In order to improve the sustainability of the purchasing
chain, Nokian Tyres started partnering with an external auditor in 2016.
The goalis to have all of Nokian Tyres' major natural rubber processors
(atleast 80% of our natural rubber purchasing volume) audited by 2020.
A total of four sites were audited in 2017. Audits enable companies to
improve occupational safety and operations as well as ensuring that the
requirements set by Nokian Tyres are metin the best possible manner.

Good corporate citizenship: Nokian Tyres is committed to
supporting good corporate citizenship, sustainable development,
and continuous improvement. The company wants to take care of its
stakeholders, financial standing, and environment as well as to produce
premium products and offer first rate service.

Active stakeholder engagement: Active stakeholder engagement
helps the company to better understand its stakeholders' expectations.
Different stakeholders may have conflicting expectations for
operations. This poses a challenge in active stakeholder engagement
and communication.

WORLD ON WHEELS

Indicator: A decrease in CO2 emissions from traffic by 500 million
kg by reducing the rolling resistance of the product range by 7%
from 2013 =» 2020.

As atyre manufacturer, Nokian Tyres is responsible for the user safety of
its products. Product liability, therefore, comprises a significant part of
the company'’s corporate sustainability. Nokian Tyres may be considered
a pioneer in the tyre industry due to the long-term development of

sustainability and environmental matters. The company has developed
advanced solutions for its products, when considering e.g. the rolling
resistance of tyres (fuel consumption, carbon dioxide emissions) or
the ground compression caused by tyres in agriculture and forestry.

In 2015, the company set a target to reduce the rolling resistance
of its product range by 7% by 2020 (compared to the 2013 baseline),
resulting in a decrease of 500 million kg in CO2 emissions from traffic
during the target period. Company has made good progress with this
target, clearly ahead of schedule. The proportion of tyres that reduce
fuel consumption through ultra-low rolling resistance was 89.6% in 2017
(87% in 2016), which translates to an annual decrease of approximately
100 million kg in CO2 emissions.

In line with its strategy, Nokian Tyres actively looks for and tests
renewable raw materials. For example, in connection with the testing
center currently under construction in Spain, the company supports
the local university’s project that is among the first in Europe to study
growing guayule, intended as a replacement for natural rubber.

ECONOMY

Indicator: Continuously improving customer satisfaction - by
one percentage point, at a minimum, in the annual customer
satisfaction index.

Financial success and the ability to create value for our stakeholders lay
the foundation for Nokian Tyres' financial responsibility. Business must
be profitable so that the company is able to offer security, work, and
well-being for its personnel, and also consider investors, customers,
and other stakeholders. The strategic goal is to grow faster than the
market and to be the world’s most profitable tyre company.

Nokian Tyres wants the dealers and users of its products to be
the most satisfied customers in the tyre industry. Long customer
relationships based on trust provide both parties with opportunities
for improvement and success. The company aims at continuously
improving customer satisfaction - by one percentage point, at a
minimum, in the annual customer satisfaction index. In 2017, overall
customer satisfaction was up by 2.6%, being 8.27 on a scale of 0 to 10
(8.06 in 2016). The customer satisfaction survey was carried out over
the phone on 14 markets and 264 customers responded.
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PEOPLE

Indicator: Occupational health and safety: 70% improvement in
the LT1F accident frequency tracking from 2015 =» 2020.

The company's principlesin all operations are fair treatment and respecting
human rights when dealing with its personnel or other stakeholders. This
principle of equality and non-discrimination is an essential part of the
company's operations, and the management of diversity is based on the
concept of equality and equal prerequisites for work. Diversity is also
important in terms of the company's success, since people with different
backgrounds and competences play a key role in the development of
the company as well as new innovative solutions. A group-wide human
rightsimpact assessment was started in 2017 and it will continue in 2018.
Furthermore, the group updated its Ethics Guidelines in spring 2017.

Motivated personnel through goal-oriented HR management

Nokian Tyres is an internationally growing business that builds the
implementation and management of its strategy on strong corporate
culture. Good management and supervisor work support the
development of the competence, well-being, and equal treatment of
the company’s motivated and professional staff. Leadership aims at
top results based on the Hakkapeliitta culture, which is built around the
entrepreneurship, working together, and inventiveness of the personnel.

Internal job rotation, on-the-job learning, and training solutions are
used to support personnel development. The Hakkapeliitta eAcademy
training portal provides a group-wide, flexible e-learning environment.
The eAcademy training portal was renewed in 2017. Personal People
Reviews have a key role in personnel development. The People Reviews
focus on managing performance and personal goals and development.
In 2017, a total of 83.4% of our personnel took part in a People Review
(86.0% in 2016).

The development of supervision and management plays a key
role. For the development of supervision, Nokian Tyres uses the 360°
supervisor assessment as well as the Hakkapeliitta Leader simulation
game. The principles of leadership are bound to the supervisors' 360
assessments. When the company rearranged its organization at the
end of the year, the group supervisors were offered coachingin change
leadership and communication.

The personnel satisfaction survey allows the company to actively
receive feedback from the personnel concerning areas forimprovement.



REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2017

In the survey performed in 2017, 91.3% responded (88.7% in 2016). The
personnel considered that the quality of the company’s products and
services is excellent and that its values are clear and worth aspiring to. The
company also received thanks for the free expression of opinions, valuing
work, and clarity of goals. The identified areas for improvement were
especially focused on supervisor work, participation, and information
transfer. Furthermore, the group arranged a virtual workshop where
the personnel could actively participate in brainstorming ideas for the
company'’s future success and sharing their expertise. The results from
both studies sent a clear message regarding the importance of working
together and the development of common processes, activity models,
and the working environment.

Safety culture is developed together
Asafe and comfortable working environmentis integral for our operations.
Occupational safety is promoted through risk management, continuous
improvement of processes, and new investments. The company's goal
is to make operations even safer and aim for zero accidents. In 2017, the
positive development of the decreasing number of accidents continued.
Accident frequency (LT1F) was 7.4 in 2017. In 2016, accident frequency
was measured with the LT3F indicator, and the ratio was 7.4. Compared
to 2015, every other injury has been managed to prevent in Nokian Tyres.

Close cooperation and completed improvements with occupational
health care allowed for preventive management of working ability.
Management of working ability is a part of daily supervisor work. In 2017,
the positive development continued as the amount of absences due
to illness declined. Well-being at work is supported by, for example, a
comprehensive selection of physical exercise, versatile group activities
and personnel events.

Committed and competent personnel and a safe working
environment enable business growth and internationalization also in
the future.

PLANET

Indicator: We will utilize 100% of our production waste and take
no production waste to landfills; Nokia 2016, Vsevolozhsk 2020.

At Nokian Tyres, environmental and chemical safety and the
coordination of sustainability belong to the Quality and Sustainability

department. Its goals are accident prevention in all areas of operation,
uninterrupted production, sustainable operation, and good corporate
citizenship. When developing functions, the company applies best
practices and advanced solutions while taking into account human
factors and financial circumstances. Nokian Tyres promotes safety
through risk management, continuous improvement of processes,
and new investments. The group’s policy environmental policy, safety
policy, and quality policy and the Ethics Guidelines for suppliers were
updated in 2017.

The factories in Nokia and Vsevolozhk and the Swedish sales
company Nokian Dack AB are certified pursuant to the international
ISO 14001 environmental management system standard and the ISO
9001 quality system standard. The company has held ISO/TS 16949
approval for the automotive industry since 2013.

Nokian Tyres emphasizes the eco-friendliness of its products and
processes. A lifespan approach is the starting point for environmental
protection: the company takes responsibility for the environmental
effects of its products throughout their lifespan. The company is also
ashareholderin Suomen Rengaskierratys Oy, which centrally manages
the collection and reuse of used tyres in Finland. In Finland, nearly
100% of decommissioned tyres are recycled, and in Europe, the degree
of recycling is approx. 95%. In Russia, Nokian Tyres has been actively
participating in discussions for improving tyre recycling. Together with
some other major tyre manufacturers, the company has established
the Eco tyre association that manages tyre recycling for actors in the
tyre industry. Its activities started in 2017.

The environmental impacts of production were reduced compared
to the previous year. A new incineration plant for reducing VOC
emissions was commissioned in Nokia in February 2015. In 2017, VOC
emissions were down in relation to production approx. 13% compared
to the previous year, but they are still above the level required by the
EC directive. In 2017, special attention was paid to energy efficiency
improvement, chemicals safety and sustainability work across different
fields of business. The preparation work related to the environmental
and chemical safety of the Dayton factory, currently being planned,
started in late 2017. At the production facilities, emphasis remained
on reusing waste, and the utilization degree of waste was 100% at the
Nokia factory and 89% at the Vsevolozhsk factory. The new biomass
power plant started in Nokia in April 2016. The plant reduce the use of
fossil fuels and increase the use of local energy sources.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018

The positive development in global economy is expected to continue
in 2018. As we entered 2018, all regions were showing positive
development. The global GDP is estimated to grow by 3.8% in 2018
(3.7% in 2017). The GDP growth estimates for the Nordic countries
range from +1.9% to +3.0%, whereas for Europe (including the Nordic
countries) the number is +2.1% and for the US +2.6%. In Russia, GDP is
forecasted to grow by approximately 1.5% to 2.0% in 2018.

In 2018, the market demand for replacement car tyres is expected
to show some growth in Central Europe, North America, and the Nordic
countries. In Russia, the market is expected to continue growing, but
the pace of the recovery is likely to be moderate.

The company's replacement tyre market position (sell-in) is expected
to improve in 2018 in all key markets. In Russia, the company expects
to retain and further strengthen its market leader position in the A+B
segments in 2018.

The raw material costs are estimated to remain approximately at
the same level in the full year 2018 compared with 2017.

Nokian Tyres retains a competitive advantage by manufacturing in
Russia. 64% of the Russian production was exported in 2017. In 2017,
Nokian Tyres invested in the expansion of the Vsevolozhsk factory
capacity and further improvements in the automation of production.
As a result of these investments, the total annual nominal capacity of
the Vsevolozhsk factory increased from 15.5 million tyres to 17 million
tyres by the end of Q3/2017.

The demand for Nokian Heavy Tyres’ core products is estimated
to remain healthy. Nokian Heavy Tyres' production capacity and
delivery capability have improved and, therefore, the sales and EBIT
are expected to increase year-over-year.

Vianor (equity-owned) is expected to increase sales, further develop
the service business, and improve the operating result in the full year
2018. Vianor (partners) and Nokian Tyres' other partner channels, such
as Nokian Tyres Authorized Dealers (NAD) and the N-Tyre network, will
continue to expand.

Nokian Tyres' budget for total investments in 2018 is EUR 260 million
(134.9), of which EUR 40 million will be invested in Russia. EUR 75 million
is planned to be invested in the Nokia factory and global development
projects. EUR 110 million is planned to be invested in the building
work of the Dayton factory. The balance goes to Heavy Tyres, sales
companies, and the Vianor chain.



REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2017

FINANCIAL GUIDANCE

In 2018, with the current exchange rates, net sales and operating profit
are expected to grow compared with 2017.

THE PROPOSAL FOR THE USE OF PROFITS BY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The distributable funds in the Parent company total EUR 658.0 million.

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting that
the distributable funds are to be used as follows:

A dIVIAENT OF oo 1.56 EUR/share
be paid out, totaling EUR 214.2 million
EUR 443.8 million
EUR 658.0 million

No material changes have taken place in the financial position of
the company since the end of the financial year. The liquidity of the
company is good, and the proposed distribution of profits does not
compromise the financial standing of the company as perceived by
the Board of Directors.

Nokia, February 2, 2018

Nokian Tyres plc
Board of Directors
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT, IFRS

EUR million | 1.1.-31.12. Notes 2017 2016 EUR million | 1.1.-31.12. Notes 2017 2016
Net sales (1) 1,572.5 1,391.2 CONSOLIDATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cost of sales (3)(6)(7) -838.8 -724.2

Result for the period 221.4 251.8
Gross profit 733.7 667.0 Other comprehensive income, items that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit and loss, net of tax
Other operating income 4 5.8 3.9 Gains/Losses from hedge of net investment in
Selling and marketing expenses (6)(7) -294.3 -267.6 foreign operations (10) 0.0 0.0
Administration expenses 6)(7) -52.7 -49.4 Cash flow hedges (10) 1.3 -0.3
Other operating expenses (5)(6)(7) 27.0 43.4 Translation differences on foreign operations ¢ -33.5 121.8

Total other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax -32.2 121.6
Operating profit 365.4 310.5

Total comprehensive income for the period 189.2 373.4
Financial income (8) 118.3 140.1
Financial expenses ¢ ©) 151.3 151.8 Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 189.2 373.4

Profit before tax 332.4 298.7 Non-controlling interest . .
Tax expense @@ (10) -111.0 -46.9

1) Financial expenses in 2017 contain EUR 15.2 million expensed punitive interest for tax reassessment decisions on
Profit for the period 221.4 251.8 year 2011. Additionally financial expenses in 2017 contain EUR 3.1 million expensed interest for tax reassessment
decisions on years 2007-2013 of a group company.

2) Tax expense in 2017 contains EUR 43.7 million expensed additional taxes with punitive increases for tax
reassessment decisions on year 2011. Tax expense in 2016 has been adjusted with EUR 4.9 million according to
the tax reassessment decision on years 2007-2010 by the Board of Adjustment.

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 221.4 251.8

Non-controlling interest ° . 3) Otherwise tax expense in the consolidated income statement is based on the taxable result for the period.

4) Since the beginning of year 2014 the Group has internal loans that are recognised as net investments in foreign
operations in accordance with IAS 21 “ The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. The impact in 2017 is
EUR 0.2 million and was in 2016 EUR -1.3 million. These internal loans have now been converted to equity in the
subsidiaries.

Earnings per share (EPS) for the profit attributable to the
equity holders of the parent: (11)

Basic, euros 1.63 1.87
Diluted, euros 1.61 1.86
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION, IFRS

EUR million | 31.12. Notes 2017 2016 EUR million | 31.12. Notes 2017 2016
ASSETS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (22)(23)
Property, plant and equipment (12)(13) 554.1 542.3 Share capital 25.4 25.4
Goodwill (2)(14) 83.3 86.5 Share premium 181.4 181.4
Other intangible assets (14) 35.6 3741 Treasury shares -20.3 6.7
Investments in associates (16) 0.1 0.1 Translation reserve -297.6 -264.1
Available-for-sale financial assets (16) 0.7 0.7 Fair value and hedging reserves 1.8 3.1
Other receivables (15)(17) 8.9 10.4 Paid-up unrestricted equity reserve 203.9 168.9
Deferred tax assets (18) 9.2 12.4 Retained earnings 1,377.4 1,356.6
691.9 689.5 1,468.4 1,458.4
Current assets
Inventories (19) 340.1 304.3 Non-controlling interest - -
Trade and other receivables (20)(29) 489.6 452.6 Total equity 1,468.4 1,458.4
Current tax assets 12.3 16.1
Cash and cash equivalents (21) 343.4 513.2 Liabilities
1,185.4 1,286.2 Non-current liabilities (24)
Total assets Q)] 1,877.4 1,975.7 Deferred tax liabilities (18) 30.4 50.6
Provisions (25) 041 0.1
Interest-bearing financial liabilities (26)(27)(29) 134.4 137.0
Other liabilities 0.4 1.0
165.3 188.8
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (28) 231.5 219.4
Current tax liabilities 6.9 16.8
Provisions (25) 4.4 3.5
Interest-bearing financial liabilities (26)(27)(29) 0.8 88.8
243.6 328.5
Total liabilities 1 409.0 517.2
Total equity and liabilities 1,877.4 1,975.7

Changes in net working capital arising from operative business are partly covered by EUR 350 million domestic
commercial paper programme.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, IFRS

EUR million | 1.1.-31.12. 2017 2016 EUR million | 1.1.-31.12. 2017 2016

Profit for the period 221.4 251.8 Cash flow from financing activities:

Adjustments for Proceeds from issue of share capital 35.0 35.9
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 98.4 100.5 Purchase of treasury shares -17.8 -
Financial income and expenses 3341 11.8 Change in current financial receivables, increase (-) / decrease (+) -16.2 28.6
Gains and losses on sale of intangible assets, other changes 5.9 -7.9 Change in non-current financial receivables, increase (-) / decrease (+) 0.7 5.1
Income Taxes 111.0 46.9 Change in current financial borrowings, increase (+) / decrease (-) -78.4 48.9

Cash flow before changes in working capital 469.8 403.2 Change in non-current financial borrowings, increase (+) / decrease (-) 11.5 -85.1

Dividens received 0.1 0.5

Changes in working capital Dividends paid -208.0 -202.0
Current receivables, non-interest-bearing, increase (-) / decrease (+) -69.0 46.3 Cash flow from financing activities (C) -27341 -168.1
Inventories, increase (-) / decrease (+) -51.8 -9.8
Current liabilities, non-interest-bearing, increase (+) / decrease (-) 47.9 6.5 Change in cash and cash equivalents, increase (+) / decrease (-) (A+B+C) -172.0 83.2

Changes in working capital -72.9 43.0

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 513.2 429.3

Financial items and taxes Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held -2.2 0.8
Interest and other financial items, received 2.6 15.5 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 343.4 513.2
Interest and other financial items, paid -36.5 -27.8
Dividens received 0.0 0.0 o . o . ,

) Based on the tax reassessment decisions on years 2007-2013 the financial items and taxes contain paid

Income taxes paid -128.9 -69.4 _ L G s
Financial items and taxes e 817 tax increases and punitive interest of FUR 77.5 million in 1-12/17. Ad‘d|t|or‘wa\liy based on the annullgd ajd
later renewed tax reassessment decisions on years 2007-2010 the financial items and taxes contain paid
X o tax increases of EUR 51.0 million in 1-12/16. Additionally in 1-12/16 the Tax Administration refunded EUR 4.9

Cash flow from operating activities (A) 2341 364.4 million tax increases according to the latest decision of the Board of Adjustment.

Groups financial borrowings were at the beginning of the year 1.1.2017 total EUR 225.8 million and at the
Cash flows from investing activities end of the year EUR 135.2 million. Changes affecting cash flow were EUR -66.9 million and non-cash changes
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets -134.9 -101.5 were EUR -23.7 million.
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets 1.7 0.6
Acquisitions of Group companies -0.3 1.7
Change in non-controlling interest = -
Acquisitions of other investments 0.0 -0.4
Cash flows from investing activities (B) -133.5 -113.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY, IFRS

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Fair value Paid-up
Share Share Treasury Translation and hedging unrestricted Retained | Non-controlling

EUR million Notes capital premium shares reserve reserves equity reserve earnings interest | Total equity
Equity, 1]Jan 2016 25.4 181.4 -8.6 -385.9 -2.9 133.0 1,299.2 - 1,241.6
Profit for the period 251.8 251.8
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Cash flow hedges -0.3 -0.3
Net investment hedge -
Translation differences 121.8 121.8
Total comprehensive income for the period 121.8 -0.3 251.8 373.4
Dividends paid (22) -201.6 -201.6
Exercised warrants 22) 35.9 35.9
Acquisition of treasury shares -
Share-based payments (23) 1.9 7.2 9.1
Total transactions with owners for the period 35.9 -194.4 -158.5
Equity, 31 Dec 2016 25.4 181.4 -6.7 -264.1 -3.1 168.9 1,356.6 - 1,458.5
Equity, 1Jan 2017 25.4 181.4 -6.7 -264.1 -3.1 168.9 1,356.6 o 1,458.5
Profit for the period 221.4 221.4
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Cash flow hedges 1.3 1.3
Net investment hedge -
Translation differences -33.5 -33.5
Total comprehensive income for the period -33.5 1.3 221.4 189.2
Dividends paid (22) -208.0 -208.0
Exercised warrants (22) 35.0 35.0
Acquisition of treasury shares -17.8 -17.8
Share-based payments (23) 4.2 7.4 11.5
Total transactions with owners for the period -13.6 35.0 -200.6 -179.3
Equity, 31 Dec 2017 25.4 181.4 -20.3 -297.6 -1.8 203.9 1,377.4 - 1,468.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basic information
Nokian Tyres Plc is a Finnish public corporation founded in accordance
with the Finnish laws and domiciled in the city of Nokia. The shares of
Nokian Tyres Plc have been quoted on the Nasdaq Helsinki Oy since 1995.
Nokian Tyres Group develops and manufactures summer and
winter tyres for passenger cars and vans, and special tyres for heavy
machinery. The Group also manufactures retreading materials and
retreads tyres. The largest and most extensive tyre retail chain in the
Nordic countries, Vianor, is also a part of the Group. The core business
areas in the Group are Passenger Car Tyres, Heavy Tyres and Vianor.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance
with the IAS and IFRS standards as well as the SICand IFRIC interpretations
inforce on 31 December 2017. International Financial Reporting Standards
refer to the standards and related interpretations to be applied within the
Community as provided in the Finnish Accounting Act and the provisions
issued on the basis of this Act, and in accordance with the procedure laid
down in Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of
the Council onthe application of international accounting standards. Notes
to the consolidated financial statements also comply with the Finnish
accounting and corporate laws.

The information in the financial statements is presented in millions
of euro and is prepared under the historical cost convention except as
disclosed in the following accounting policies.

Revised standards and interpretations
The Group has adopted new and revised standards and interpretations
enforced in the EU during the period. The changes had no material
impact on the result, the financial position or the other information
presented in the financial statements of the Group for the period.
IFRS are under constant development. Other new standards,
interpretations or theiramendments have also been published but they
are not yet in force and the Group will not apply them before they are
enforced. The Group will adopt each standard and interpretation on the
effective date or from the beginning of the following financial period.

The most significant future changes will have the following impact:

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers will be effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The new
standard replaces current IAS 18 and IAS 11 -standards and related
interpretations. In IFRS 15 a five-step model is applied to determine
when to recognise revenue, and at what amount. Revenue is recognised
when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a
customer either over time or at a pointin time. The standard introduces
also extensive new disclosure requirements. The impacts of IFRS 15 on
Nokian Tyres' consolidated financial statements have been assessed
as follows:

Key concepts of IFRS 15 have been analysed for different revenue
streams and based on that a preliminary survey has been conducted on
the standard and its differences to the current reporting practices, and
possible needs for adjustments. The Group business activity primarily
comprises of the trade in consumer discretionary with conventional
customer contracts, payment and other terms, involving traditional
delivery chains in diverse lengths. Rebates and other variable
considerations are tracked while defining the transaction price. Sale
of services and goods form separate performance obligations. For the
time being services generate only a minor share of the net sales.

According to the performed surveys the expected impacts in the
Group are limited with the current business operations. Any possible
adjustment needs to contracts and thresholds for revenue recognition
are assessed to be minimal. In the future as the share of the service
business and complexity within is expected to increase the Group will
emphasize system development and contract management in relation
to revenue recognition. The renewed instruction on agent/principal is
assessed not to change present handling of the commissions payable
to distributors.

Timeline for implementing and the transition options to be used
are as follows: the Group intends to implement the standard fully
retrospectively with no special relieves applied.

At the same time amendments to IFRS 15 - Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (not yet endorsed for use by the
European Union as of 31 December 2016) are expected to be effective.
The impact assessment of the clarifications has been included in the
IFRS 15 impact assessment described above.
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IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 will apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The new standard replaces the current IAS 39 - Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement standard and related interpretations. IFRS
9 includes renewed guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial instruments, the recognition of expected credit losses and the
application of hedge accounting.

The Group has analyzed the effects of the adoption of IFRS 9 and
expects them to have no material effect on the result, financial position
or other disclosures of the Group's future financial statements. There
will be minor changes in the classification of financial instruments and
the ineffectiveness of hedging instruments used in hedge accounting
is expected to decrease. The change in the impairment of financial
assets mainly concerns the recognition of credit losses related to trade
receivables. The Group follows the simplified approach whereby the
impairment recognized in trade receivables corresponds to lifetime
expected credit losses for trade receivables.

IFRS 16 - Leases
The Group is assessing the impact of the standard, and tentatively
estimates that the new standard will have some impact on the future
financial statements of the Group.

The standard will primarily affect the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. At the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of EUR 89 million. This amount includes
payments for short-term and low value leases which will be recognized
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit and loss. However, the
Group has notyet assessed what other adjustments, if any, are necessary
for example because of the change in the definition of the lease term
and the different treatment of variable lease payments and of extension
and termination options. It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that will have to be
recognized on adoption of the new standard and how this may affect
the Group's profit or loss and classification of cash flows going forward.

Mandatory application date is for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

The Group estimates that the other published improvements or
amendments will not have a materialimpact on the result, financial position
or other disclosures of the future financial statements of the Group.
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Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the amount
of assets and liabilities shown in the statement of financial position
at the time of preparation, the presentation of contingent assets and
liabilities in the financial statements, and the amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Estimates have been used e.g. to
determine the amount of items reported in the financial statements, to
measure assets, to test goodwill and other assets for impairment, and
for the future use of deferred tax assets. Since the estimates are based
on the best current assessments of the management, the final figures
may deviate from those used in the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty still relate to the country riskin
the Russian business environment. Though the positive developmentin
global economy is expected to continue in 2018, political uncertainties
could cause serious disruption and additional trade barriers, and affect
the company’s sales and credit risk. Brexit, as such, has practically no
effect on Nokian Tyres’ business. Other sources of uncertainty relate
to the challenging pricing environment of tyres in line with price
development of raw materials.

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the parent company Nokian Tyres Plc as well as all subsidiaries in
which the Parent company owns, directly or indirectly, more than 50%
of the voting rights or in which the Parent company otherwise exercises
control. Control exists when the Group through participation in an
investee is exposed or entitled to its variable returns and is able to
affect the returns through exercising power over the investee.
Associated companies in which the Group has 20 to 50% of the
voting rights and in which it exercises significant influence but not
control, have been consolidated using the equity method. If the
Group's share of the associated company’s losses exceeds its holding
in the associated company, the carrying amount will be recorded in
the balance sheet at nil value and losses in excess of that value will
be ignored unless the Group has obligations towards the associated
companies. Investments in associates include the carrying amount
of the investment in an associated company according to the equity
method, and possible other non-currentinvestments in the associated
company, which are, in substance, part of a net investment in the
associated company.

Ajoint arrangement refers to a contractual undertaking, in which the
Group has agreed to share control over material financial and business
principles with one or more parties. A joint arrangement is either a joint
operation or a joint venture. In a joint venture the Group holds rights
to the net assets of the arrangement whereas in a joint operation the
Group holds rights to the assets and carries obligations on the liabilities
of the arrangement. Nokianvirran Energia Oy is a joint operation as the
parties share control according to a specific Mankala-principle where the
company is not intended to make profit while the parties have agreed
to utilize the total output. Nokianvirran Energia Oy is accounted for as a
Group company using the proportionate consolidation method on each
row according to the 32.3% shareholding.

Acquired subsidiaries have been consolidated using the acquisition
method, according to which the acquired company’s assets and liabilities
are measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. The cost of goodwill
is the excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer'’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities. Acquisition-related costs, except for the costs
to issue debt or equity securities, are expensed. Possible contingent
consideration is measured at fair value on the date of acquisition and is
classified as aliability. Contingent consideration classified as a liability is
measured at fair value on each reporting date and the following gain or
loss is recognized in the income statement. Under IFRS goodwill is not
amortised but is tested annually for impairment. Subsidiaries acquired
during the financial year have been consolidated from the acquisition
date and those divested until the divestment date.

All internal transactions, receivables, liabilities and unrealised
margins, as well as distribution of profits within the Group, are
eliminated while preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Profit for the period is attributed to the owners of the Parent
company and to the non-controlling interests. Moreover, non-
controlling interests are disclosed as a separate item under the
consolidated equity.

Foreign currency items

Transactions in foreign currencies have been recorded at the exchange
rates effective on the transaction date. In the statement of financial
position all items in foreign currencies unsettled on the reporting date
are measured at the European Central Bank's closing exchange rate.
The quotations of the relevant central bank are applied if the European
Central Bank does not quote a specific currency. Foreign exchange
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gains and losses related to business operations and financing activities
have been recorded under financial income and expenses.

Foreign Group companies
The statements of financial position of foreign subsidiaries have
been translated into euro using the European Central Bank’s closing
rates, and the income statements using the average rate for the
period. Translation differences arising from the subsidiaries’ income
statements and statements of financial position have been recorded
under other comprehensive income and in the translation reserve
within equity as a separate item. Translation differences arising from
the elimination of foreign company acquisition cost and from the profits
and losses incurred after the acquisition have been recorded under
other comprehensive income as a separate item and in the translation
reserve within equity. If settlement of a loan to a foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, then the
loan is considered as a net investment in a foreign operation and the
foreign exchange gains and losses arising on the item are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation
reserve within equity.

When a subsidiary is divested fully or in part, the related
accumulated translation differences are brought from equity to the
income statement and entered as a gain or loss on the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and other current
investments, such as commercial papers and bank deposits.

Financial assets

Financial assets have been classified as follows: financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss, available-for-sale financial assets, and
loans and receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include liquid
currentinvestments, such as commercial papers, and derivative assets
to which hedge accounting is not applied.

Loans and receivables include non-derivative assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. In
the Group, this category includes trade receivables and other loan
receivables resulting from commercial activities and cash funds and
other current investments, such as bank deposits. Loans and other
receivables have been measured at amortised cost less any write-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

downs, and in the statement of financial position they are included
in current or non-current receivables, depending on their maturity.
Available-for-sale financial assets include quoted and unquoted
shares. Quoted shares are measured at fair value, which is the share
bid price on the reporting date. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income until the financial asset is sold or divested,
at which time the changes in fair value are transferred to profit and
loss. Impairments are recorded in profit and loss. Unquoted shares
are measured at cost if the fair value cannot be reliably determined.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities have been classified as follows: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include
derivative liabilities to which hedge accounting is not applied.

In the Group, loans are measured at fair value on the basis of the
consideration received in connection with the original recognition, after
which the loans are recorded at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Bank overdrafts are included in current liabilities
in the statement of financial position.

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest
rate, foreign currency and electricity price risk exposures. Derivatives
are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value and fair values are presented in
the statement of financial position under current receivables or liabilities.
Publicly quoted market prices and rates, as well as generally used
measurement models, are used to define the fair value of derivatives.
The information and assumptions used in the measurement models are
based on verifiable market prices and values.

Hedge accounting is not applied to the derivatives used to hedge
cash flows from the Group's business operations in foreign currencies.
Changes in fair value of derivatives to which hedge accounting is not
applied are recognised immediately in profitand loss as financing items.

The Group applies IAS 39 compliant hedge accounting to hedges of
the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to an interest
rate risk associated with recognised non-current liabilities and to
hedges to manage electricity price risk. To meet all the hedge accounting
criteria, at the inception of these hedges the Group designates and

documents the hedging relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument including effectiveness measurement methods and
the hedging strategy in accordance with the Group's risk management
policy. The Group aims to choose hedging instruments that create no
ineffective portion.

Hedge accounting is applied in cash flow hedging in connection with
interest rate swaps, by which floating rate liabilities have been changed
to fixed rate liabilities. The effective portion of the change in the fair
value of the interest rate swaps is recognised in other comprehensive
income and any remaining ineffective portion recognised in the income
statement. The gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive
income are transferred to financial items in the income statement when
the hedged item affects the income statement.

The Group applies hedge accounting to certain currency derivatives
and currency loans. Changes in fair value of the currency derivatives
meeting the hedge accounting criteria are recognised in other
comprehensive income except for the potential ineffective portion
and the time value of currency options, which are recognised in the
income statement. Correspondingly, the foreign exchange gains and
losses on foreign currency loans taken out for hedging purposes are
recorded under other comprehensive income and interest expenses
under financial items in the income statement.

The Group's forecast electricity purchases in Finland are hedged
with electricity derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied. The
effective portion of the fair value change of the electricity derivatives is
recognised in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion
in the income statement under other operating income or expenses.
The gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to cost of sales in the income statement when the hedged
item affects the income statement.

Income recognition

Income from the sale of products is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards connected with ownership of the goods, as well as the
right of possession and effective control, have been transferred to the
buyer and payment is probable. This is also the case when a customer
separately requests that the assignment of goods be deferred. Revenue
from services is recognised once the services have been rendered.
Generally, sales are recognised upon delivery in accordance with the
contractual terms and conditions. To calculate the net sales, sales
revenue is adjusted with indirect taxes and discounts.
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Research and development costs

Research costs are recorded as other operating expenses for the
financial period in which they incurred. Development costs are
capitalised once certain criteria associated with commercial and
technical feasibility have been met. Capitalised development costs
primarily comprising materials, supplies and direct labour costs, as well
asrelated overheads, are amortised systematically over their expected
useful life. The amortisation period is 3-5 years.

Government grants

Grants received from governments or other parties are recognised
adjustments to related expenses in the income statement for the
period. Grants received for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment reduce the acquisition cost.

Operating profit

The Group has defined operating profit as follows: operating profit is
the net sum of net sales plus other operating income less cost of sales,
selling and marketing expenses, administration expenses and other
operating expenses. Operating profit does not include exchange rate
gains or losses.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs of items included in property, plant and equipment
or other intangible assets, and requiring a substantial construction
period, are capitalised for the period needed to produce the investment
for the intended purpose. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
expenses for the period in which they incurred.

Income taxes

The tax expense of the Group include taxes based on the profit or loss
for the period or dividend distribution of the Group companies, as well
as change in deferred tax, and adjustment of taxes from prior periods.
The penalty interests on those are recorded as financial expenses. The
tax impact of items recorded directly in equity or other comprehensive
income is correspondingly recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income. The share of associated companies’ profit or
loss is shown in the income statement calculated from the net result,
and thereby includes the impact of taxes. Deferred taxes are measured
with tax rates enacted by the reporting date, to reflect the net tax
effects of all temporary differences between the financial reporting
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and tax bases of assets and liabilities. The most significant temporary
differences arise from the amortisation and depreciation differences
ofintangible assets and property, plant and equipment, measuring the
net assets of business combinations at fair value, measuring available-
for-sale financial assets and hedging instruments at fair value, internal
profits in inventory and other provisions, appropriations and unused
tax losses. Deferred tax liabilities will also be recognised from the
subsidiaries’ non-distributed retained earnings if profit distribution is
likely and will resultin tax consequences. Deferred tax assets relating to
the temporary differences is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised before expiration. Deferred taxes are not recorded on
goodwill that is not deductible for tax purposes.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to the equity holders of the parent for the period by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
The average number of treasury shares has been deducted from the
number of shares outstanding.

For the calculation of the diluted earnings per share the diluting
impact of all potentially diluting share conversions have been taken into
account. The Group has share options and previously also convertible
bonds as diluting instruments. The dilution of share options has been
computed using the treasury stock method. In dilution, the denominator
includes the shares obtained through the assumed conversion of the
options, and the repurchase of treasury shares at the average market
price during the period with the funds generated by the conversion.
The assumed conversion of options is not taken into account for the
calculation of earnings per share if the effective share subscription
price defined for the options exceeds the average market price for the
period. The convertible bonds are assumed to have been traded for
company shares after the issue.

Property, plant and equipment

The values of property, plant and equipment acquired by the Group
companies are based on their costs. The assets of acquired subsidiaries
are measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis from the original acquisition
cost, based on the expected useful life. Depreciation includes any
impairment losses.

Inthe statement of financial position, property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The borrowing costs of items included in property, plant and equipment,
and requiring a substantial construction period, are capitalised for the
period needed to produce the investment for the intended purpose. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period they incurred.

Depreciation is based on the following expected useful lives:
Buildings 20-40 years
Machinery and equipment ...4-20 years
Other tangible assets .10-40 years
Land is not depreciated.

The expected useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, and
if they differ materially from previous estimates, the depreciation
schedules are changed accordingly.

Regular maintenance and repair costs are recognised as expenses
for period. Expenses incurred from significant modernisation or
improvement projects are recorded in the statement of financial
position if the company gains future economic benefits in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset.
Modernisation and improvement projects are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives. Gains and losses from the divestment
and disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference of the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts.
Sales gains and losses are included in operating profit in the income
statement.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill arising from business combinations is recognised as the
amount by which the aggregate of the transferred consideration,
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and any previously held
interest exceeds the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is
not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and whenever an
indication of possible impairment exists.

Other intangible assets include customer relationships, capitalised
development costs, patents, copyrights, licences and software.
Intangible rights acquired in business combinations are measured
at fair value and amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives. Other intangible assets are measured at cost and amortised
on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. An intangible asset is
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only recorded in the statement of financial position if it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the company and cost can be measured reliably.
Subsequent expenses related to the assets are only recorded in the
statement of financial position if the company gains future economic
benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance
of the existing asset; otherwise, costs are recognised as expenses at
the time of occurrence.

Inthe statement of financial position, intangible assets are recorded
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. The
borrowing costs of items included in other intangible assets, and
requiring a substantial construction period, are capitalised for the
period needed to produce the investment for the intended purpose.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period they
incurred. The amortisation schedule for intangible assets is 3-10 years.

Impairment

At reporting date the Group shall assess whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset in question is estimated. Goodwill and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually. To assess impairment, the Group's assets are allocated to
cash-generating units on the smallest group that s largely independent
of other units and the cash flows of which can be separated.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value of the asset less
costs to sell and a value in use. As a rule, value in use is based on the
discounted future cash flows that the corresponding asset or the cash-
generating unit can derive. The impairment recognised in the income
statement is the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds the corresponding recoverable amount, and in the statement
of financial position it is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill of the unit and then pro rata against the other assets.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods will be reversed if the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount change. However,
areversal ofimpairmentloss shall not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined in the statement of financial position
without the recognised impairment loss in prior periods. Impairment
loss on goodwill is not reversed under any circumstances.

Leasing agreements
Leasing agreements are classified as either finance leases or operating
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leases. Leasing agreements by which the risks and benefits associated
with the ownership of an asset are substantially transferred to the
lessee company represent finance leases.

The Group as a lessee

Assets held under finance leases, less depreciation, are included in
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment and the obligations
resulting from the lease in financial liabilities. Lease payments resulting
from finance leases are apportioned between finance charges and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. Charges paid under operating
leases are recognised as expenses in the income statement.

Finance leases have been recorded in the statement of financial
position in the amount equalling the fair value of the leased property
or, iflower, present value of minimum lease payments, each determined
at the inception of the lease. The assets are depreciated consistent
with assets that are owned and any impairment losses are recorded.
Depreciation is carried out over the useful life or a shorter lease term.

The Group as a lessor

Assets held under finance leases have been recorded in the statement
of financial position as receivables at amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. Lease income resulting from finance leases are
recorded in the income statement with constant periodic rate of return
on the lessor’s net investment in the finance lease. Assets held under
leases other than finance leases are included in intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment in the statement of financial position.
These are depreciated over their useful lives, consistent with assets
in the company’'s own use. Lease income is recorded in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or the net realisable
value. Cost is primarily determined in accordance with standard cost
accounting, which corresponds to the cost calculated in accordance
with the FIFO (first-in, first-out) method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress includes raw material purchase costs, direct
manufacturing wages, other direct manufacturing costs, and a share
of production overheads, borrowing costs excluded. Net realisable
value is the estimated sales price in ordinary activities less the costs
associated with the completion of the product and the estimated
necessary costs incurred to make the sale of the product.

Trade receivables
Trade receivablesin the statement of financial position are carried at the
original invoice value (and those in foreign currencies are measured at
the closing rate of the European Central Bank) less doubtful receivables
and credits for returned goods. Doubtful receivables are based on the
case-by-case assessment of outstanding trade receivables as well as
on historical experience of the portion the Group will not receive under
the original terms and conditions.

Actual and estimated creditlosses are recorded as other operating
expenses in the income statement.

Dividend

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors at the Annual General
Meeting has not been recognised in the financial statements. Dividends
are only accounted for on the basis of the decision of the Annual
General Meeting.

Equity

The acquisition cost of treasury shares repurchased by the Group is
recognised as a deduction in equity. The consideration received for the
treasury shares when sold, net of transaction costs and tax, is included
in equity.

Provisions

A provision is entered into the statement of financial position if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can
be reliably estimated. Provisions may be related to the reorganisation
of activities, unprofitable agreements, environmental obligations,
trials and tax risks. Warranty provisions include the cost of product
replacement during the warranty period. Provisions constitute best
estimates at the balance sheet date and are based on past experience
of the level of warranty expenses.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by realization of an uncertain
future event not totally controllable by the Group. A contingent liability
is also defined as a present obligation that probably will not require
the settlement of the obligation, or cannot be measured reliably.
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A contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Correspondingly, a contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
realization of an uncertain future event not totally controllable by the
Group. In case an inflow of economic benefits is probable, a contingent
assetis disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Employee benefits

Pension liabilities

The Group companies have several pension schemes in different
countries based on local conditions and practices. These pension
arrangements are classified as either defined contribution plans or
defined benefit plans. Payments for defined contribution plans are
recorded as expenses in the income statement for the period they
relate to. All of the material pension arrangements in the Group are
defined contribution plans.

Share-based payments

Share options are measured at fair value on the grant date and expensed
on astraight-line basis over the vesting period. Corresponding amounts
are recorded as an increase in equity. The expense determined on
the grant date is based on the Group's estimate of the number of
options that are assumed to vest at the end of the vesting period. The
Black & Scholes’ option pricing model is used to determine the fair
value of options. The impact of non-market-based conditions (such as
profitability and a certain profit growth target) is not included in the fair
value of the option; instead, it is taken into account in the final number
of options that are assumed to vest at the end of the vesting period. The
Group updates the assumption of the final number on each reporting
date. Changes in the estimates are recognised in the income statement.

When options are exercised, the payments received on the basis of
share subscriptions (adjusted with any transaction costs) are recorded
in paid-up unrestricted equity reserve.

Performance shares are measured at fair value on the grant date
and are expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The
equity-settled amounts are recorded as an increase in equity. The
expense determined on the grant date is based on the Group's estimate
of the number of shares that are assumed to vest at the end of the
vesting period. The impact of non-market-based conditions (such as
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net sales and operating profit) is not included in the fair value of the
share; instead, it is taken into account in the final number of shares
that are assumed to vest at the end of the vesting period. The Group
updates the assumption of the final number on each reporting date.
The fair values of cash-settled amounts are similarly updated on each
reporting date and recorded as a liability. Changes in the estimates
of both the equity and cash-settled amounts are recognised in the
income statement.

Other option and incentive schemes
No other option and incentive schemes were in use during 2017.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
A non-current asset, or a group of disposable items, is classified as
being held for sale if the amount corresponding to its carrying amount
will primarily be generated from the sale of the asset instead of being
generated from the continued use of the asset. Non-current assets held
for sale, and assets related to discontinued operations, are measured
at their carrying amounts, or the lower fair value less costs to sell,
if the amount corresponding to its carrying amount will primarily be
generated from the sale of the asset and if the sales transaction is most
likely to take place.

A discontinued operation is a part of the entity that has been
divested or classified as being held for sale and represents a separate
core business area or a geographic operating area.

The Group's financial statements for 2017 and 2016 do not include
any non-current assets held for sale or any discontinued operations.
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1. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s management team is the chief operating decision maker.
The segment information is presented in respect of the business and
geographical segments. Business segments are based on the internal
organization and financial reporting structure.

The business segments comprise of entities with assets and
operating activities providing products and services. The segments
are managed as separate entities.

Pricing of inter-segment transactions is based on current market
prices and the terms of evaluating profitability and resources allocated
to segments are based on profit before interests and taxes.

Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to
a segment and items that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. The
unallocated items contain tax and financial items together with joint Group
resource items. Capital expenditure comprises of additions to intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment used in more than one period.

Business segments

Passenger Car Tyres -business unit covers the development and
production of summer and winter tyres for cars and vans.

Heavy Tyres - business unit comprises tyres for forestry machinery,
special tyres for agricultural machinery, tractors and industrial
machinery as well as retreading and truck tyre business.

Vianor -tyre chain sells car and van tyres as well as truck tyres. In
addition to Nokian brand, Vianor sells other leading tyre brands and
other automotive products and services.

Other operations contain business development and Group
management unallocated to the segments.

Eliminations consist of eliminations between different business
segments.

Notes concerning geographical segments
The business segments are operating in seven geographic regions:
Finland, Sweden, Norway, Russia and the CIS, the rest of Europe, North
America and the rest of the world.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the location of the customers and
segment assets are based on the location of the assets.

Operating segments

2017 Passenger Heavy Other
EUR million Car Tyres Tyres Vianor operations Eliminations Group
Net sales from external customers 1,076.6 146.6 338.6 10.6 0.0 1,572.5
Services 118.5 118.5
Sales of goods 1,076.6 146.6 220.1 10.6 0.0 1,453.9
Inter-segment net sales 62.3 25.7 0.7 0.6 -89.3
Net sales 1,138.8 172.3 339.4 11.2 -89.3 1,572.5
Operating result 359.9 32.2 -5.8 -23.7 2.8 365.4
% of net sales 31.6% 18.7% -1.7% -210.8% 23.2%
Financial income and expenses -33.0
Profit before tax 332.4
Tax expense -111.0
Profit for the period 221.4
Assets 1,166.3 134.6 163.3 21.4 -7.4 1,478.3
Unallocated assets 3991
Total assets 1,877.4
Liabilities 155.8 26.8 46.6 3.9 0.2 233.2
Unallocated liabilities 175.7
Total liabilities 409.0
Capital expenditure 1171 11.6 6.2 0.1 0.0 134.9
Depreciation and amortisation 79.4 9.0 8.9 0.9 0.0 98.3
Other non-cash expenses 6.2 0.8 0.9 1.3 0.0 9.1
2016 Passenger Heavy Other
EUR million Car Tyres Tyres Vianor  Operations Eliminations Group
Net sales from external customers 915.8 128.3 334.0 13.0 0.0 1,391.2
Services 79.4 79.4
Sales of goods 915.8 128.3 254.6 13.0 0.0 1,311.7
Inter-segment net sales 65.3 27.0 0.8 0.7 -93.8
Net sales 981.1 155.3 334.8 13.7 -93.8 1,391.2
Operating result 305.8 28.2 -8.1 -14.5 -1.0 310.5
% of net sales 31.2% 18.2% -2.4% -105.5% 22.3%
Financial income and expenses -11.8
Profit before tax 298.7
Tax expense -46.9
Profit for the period 251.8
Assets 1,071.2 115.9 180.6 31.4 -7.8 1,391.4
Unallocated assets 584.3
Total assets 1,975.7
Liabilities 127.6 26.8 46.6 5.3 -3.2 203.0
Unallocated liabilities 314.2
Total liabilities 517.2
Capital expenditure 71.5 8.2 21.8 4.0 0.0 105.6
Depreciation and amortisation 69.1 8.6 6.4 0.7 0.0 84.7
Other non-cash expenses 23.6 2.0 4.5 1.5 0.0 317
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Geographical information

2017
Russia and the rest North the rest of
EUR million Finland Sweden Norway the CIS of Europe America the world Group
Net sales 221.5 214.3 189.4 325.5 438.6 172.0 111 1,572.5
Services 30.4 58.2 26.7 0.0 0.9 2.4 118.5
Sales of goods 191.1 156.2 162.7 325.5 437.7 169.6 141 1,453.9
Assets 444.9 91.6 53.3 568.5 159.4 96.8 2.4 1,416.9
Unallocated assets 460.5
Total assets 1,877.4
Capital expenditure 57.8 1.4 341 65.3 1.1 6.2 0.0 134.9
2016
Russia and the rest North the rest of
EUR million Finland Sweden Norway the CIS of Europe America the world Group
Net sales 220.2 200.8 178.8 2231 407.5 149.8 11.0 1,391.2
Services 30.5 21.2 23.6 0.2 1.6 2.4 79.4
Sales of goods 189.8 179.5 155.3 2229 405.9 147.5 11.0 1,311.7
Assets 4329 86.0 54.4 561.7 119.8 85.7 3.1 1,343.7
Unallocated assets 632.0
Total assets 1,975.7
Capital expenditure 55.5 7.4 5.1 36.3 0.7 0.5 0.0 105.6
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2. ACQUISITIONS

Acquisitions and other changes in 2017
On September 29 2017 the Group acquired the studding operations
from Nokian Nasta Oy through an asset deal.

This acquisition has minor impact on group accounts.

EUR million 2017
Purchase consideration

Consideration paid in cash 0.3
Contingent consideration liability -
Total consideration 0.3

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed:

EUR million Note 2017
Property, plant and equipment (12) 0.5
Inventories -

Trade and other receivables -
Cash and cash equivalents -

Total Assets 0.5
Deferred tax liabilities (18) -
Financial Liabilities -
Trade and other payables 0.1
Total Liabilities 0.1
Total identifiable net assets 0.3

Composition of goodwill in the acquisition

Consideration transferred 0.3
Total identifiable net assets 0.3
Goodwill (14) 0.0
Consideration paid in cash 0.3

Cash and cash equivalents in the
subsidiaries acquired -
Net cash outflow 0.3

The actual acquisition dates and the nature of the operations
taken into account the effect of the acquisitions on the consolidated
net sales and profit is not material even if they all were combined as of
the beginning of the financial year.

The acquisition related costs of EUR 0.0 million have been
recorded as cost of sales expenses. There were no other transactions
recognised separately from these acquisitions. The consideration has
been transferred in cash and no significant contingent consideration
arrangements were included. No non-controlling interest remained in
the acquiree. The identifiable asset acquired and liabilities assumed
are recorded in fair value.

Acquisitions and other changes in 2016
Vianor-chain has expanded further through several minor business
combinations in Finland, Sweden, Norway and USA.

EUR million 2016
Purchase consideration

Consideration paid in cash 12.8
Contingent consideration liability 0.1
Total consideration 12.9

The Group is committed to pay contingent considerations of total EUR
0.1 million in case the net sales and operating profits of the acquired
businesses within the next three years after the acquisition year
exceed the targets set for each (total net sales EUR 0.3 million and
total operating profits EUR 0.1 million).

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed:
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EUR million Note 2016
Property, plant and equipment (12) 3.8
Inventories 2.8
Trade and other receivables 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 1.0
Total Assets 8.7
Deferred tax liabilities (18) 0.3
Financial Liabilities 2.1
Trade and other payables 0.3
Total Liabilities 2.7
Total identifiable net assets 6.0

Composition of goodwill in the acquisition

Consideration transferred 12.9
Total identifiable net assets 6.0
Goodwill (14) 6.9
Consideration paid in cash 12.8
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiaries

acquired 1.0
Net cash outflow 1.7

The expectations relating to the growth in sales through increased
customer base, and the future expectations on improved market area
coverage and sales increase resulted in the recognition of goodwill.

Since these pieces of information are not material individually, the
presentation is aggregated. The profits of the acquired companies,
totalling EUR 0.4 million, are included in the consolidated income
statement. The actual acquisition dates and the nature of the operations
taken into account the effect of the acquisitions on the consolidated
net sales and profit is not material even if they all were combined as of
the beginning of the financial year.

The acquisition related costs of EUR 0.0 million have been recorded
as selling and marketing expenses. There were no other transactions
recognised separately from these acquisitions. The consideration has
been transferred in cash and no significant contingent consideration
arrangements were included. No non-controlling interest remained in
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the acquiree. The identifiable asset acquired and liabilities assumed Other operating expenses include the ineffective portion of the 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

are recorded in fair value. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the electricity derivatives used as cash flow hedges amounting to EUR
consideration transferred over the total identifiable net assets. None 0.2 million (EUR -0.6 million in 2016). EUR million 2017 2016
of the goodwill recognised is deductible for income tax purposes. Wages and salaries 164.8 160.5
Pension contributions - defined
6. DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND contribution plans 25.4 23.4
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES Share-based payments 16.1 15.0
3. COST OF SALES Other social security contributions 18.3 20.2
EUR million 2017 2016 Total 224.7 219.0
EUR million 2017 2016

Depreciation and amortisation by asset

Raw materials 355.6 321.2 Information on the employee benefits and loans of the key management

Goods purchased for resale 217.5 122.2 r:::fgi;)lle rights 10.4 53 personnel is presented in note 34 Related party transactions.

Wages and social security contributions on Other intangible assets 1.9 17

G4 000 e e
Machinery and equipment 72.3 66.5

Depreciation of production 69.3 63.1 Other tangible assets 1.3 14 Number of personnel, average

Sales freights 53.4 46.9 Total 983 84.7 Production 1,917 1,825

Change in inventories 35.8 33.0 Selling and marketing 2,483 2,392

Total 838.8 724.2 Impairment losses by asset category Others 230 216
Other intangible assets - 3.6 Total sl 4,433
Goodwill 1.4 -

4. OTHER OPERATING INCOME Total 1.4 3.6

EUR million 2017 2016 Depreciation and amortisation by 8. FINANCIAL INCOME

Gains on sale of property, plant and function

equipment 1.7 0.7 Production 69.3 63.1 EUR million 2017 2016

Other income 41 3.2 Selling and marketing LA 126 Interest income on loans and receivables 2.6 2.5

Total 5.8 3.9 Administration Rl 6.9 Dividend income on available-for-sale
Other depreciation and amortisation 3.4 2.0 financial assets 0.0 0.0
Total . 84.7 Exchange rate gains and chang